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€ EMBRY FORM, the Group’s

¢ signature brand, was

¥ accredited as “The Best-selling
Lingerie Products in the Industry
i China” in 2008 for the

thirteenth consecutive year
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Always striving for excellence, EMBRY FORM has created numerous
innovative lingerie products that cater for different needs of women and
highlight the beautiful curves of the female body. The brand’s patented
designs and wide range of products effectively enrich the functions of
lingerie while bringing out the inner and outer beauty of women. Embry
Form is a perfect cross between modern technology and style.
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Sales Network
SHE M

Hainan
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OVER1 SOO RETAIL OUTLETS

AN EXTENSIVE NETWORK CAPTURING GROWING OPPORTUNITIES IN CHINA

The Group’s sales points span the whole nation, with footprints in all major cities such as Beijing, Shanghai, Chongging,
Tianjin, Guangzhou, Hong Kong and Macau. Such an extensive network enables the Group to efficiently respond to
customer needs and deepen its market penetration in China.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had a total of 1,657 retail outlets, comprising 1,440 concessionary counters and
117 retail shops in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.
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Financial Highlights
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Corporate Mission
IR

Creating Value for All
RETK - BI&EEE

Generating Synergy
BTG - ISR

Striving for Excellence
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Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands
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Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Cayman) Limited
(BT #EButterfield Fund Services (Cayman) Limited)
Butterfield House
68 Fot Street
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Independent
Auditors’ Report

R L GTIE e

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
=7 ik

To the shareholders of Embry Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Embry Holdings Limited
set out on pages 71 to 162, which comprise the consolidated

and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

Embry Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

B B ENRE ()

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong, 16 April 2009

BEEMNEEE)
ERTIERIEETTE TIEF ABRBE P BERER
SRR KBEENNELERE - IRANER
BURR BB ey #I B - ST A B R REFER
MERHBHRFEEARERRANER - &4
HENEEZ SRR  §ZERZARRHEE
BEMRFORBEHRROBEAIES - AR
ERBEZIZF - I IEAE A R A A BEDE S 82
REBEXRER - ERTENEEFEEZMREAN
B BRNABEERAERN S A NEE
1% ARFHEM SRR NERI BT

AEZBENRE - ARBMAESHNERRERR
RAEE 1 AL B RIR AR -

=R

AZBERR  ZEHBBRREREETBHER
SENEEMAFHRR BERANR EEER_
ZEN\F+A=+—HNEBRAE EEEE
EZALFENENMRERE  YERRER
RNAEMERBIE TR R E Z RS o

e S =
HEET AT
IR 85
B & g 2]
1818

B —ETAFEOA+IKH



Embry Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008 71

Consolidated
Income Statement

AR e W

Year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZT/N\F+_A=1+—HBIFE

2008 2007
—EENF —ETF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
iz FET FET
REVENUE & 5 973,342 711,668
Cost of sales SHE R (208,321) (160,123)
Gross profit ER 765,021 551,545
Other income and gains = PN S 6 18,752 69,240
Selling and distribution expenses HE R DAY (569,563) (396,846)
Administrative expenses TR (116,385) (80,439)
Other expenses HAbFZ 7 (2,720) (143)
Finance costs & A A 8 (2) (118)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREE AR 9 95,103 143,239
Tax A 12 (23,120) (20,723)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KATERITE ARG
ATTRIBUTABLE TO FERA
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY 14 71,983 122,516
DIVIDENDS BRE 15 32,091 32,000
EARNINGS PER SHARE AARERIFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EEERER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY 16
— Basic (HK cents) —ZK B 17.95 30.63

— Diluted (HK cents) —#5g (B) 17.83 30.29
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Consolidated

Balance Sheet
/\\/T\/\ éF 1 2%

31 December 2008 —ZF/\F+=-A=+—H

2008 2007
—EBENF —ETF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Kzt FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MR 17 205,200 164,294
Investment property BB 18 30,000 31,000
Prepaid land lease payments Fa LR E 0B 19 3,863 3,730
Deferred tax asset EEFRIEEE 30 3,361 =
Deposits B 22 455 1,988
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 242,879 201,012
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories =g 20 360,342 295,959
Trade receivables FEUE FEER 21 41,703 31,912
Prepayments, deposits and TENRIE - Ze Kk
other receivables H {th fE U kI8 22 24,735 33,948
Due from a related company Féuéz R RAE A T 23 - 22,400
Financial assets at fair value BEBRRAA FHEWEEZ
through profit or loss EREE 24 23,014 =
Cash and cash equivalents Be MIREeEEY 26 336,500 349,247
Total current assets mEEEAE 786,294 733,466
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Trade and bills payables FERHE SRR N FERT 215 27 33,021 32,842
Tax payable JERTARIR 11,425 3,604
Other payables and accruals H b e T8 R FEET RIE 28 64,937 52,652
Total current liabilities mEN B EEE 109,383 89,098
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 676,911 644,368
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EERRBEE
LIABILITIES 919,790 845,380
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred liabilities FERE 29 4,838 3,388
Deferred tax liabilities BIETIEAE 30 6,522 2,532
Total non-current liabilities ERBBEEE 11,360 5,920
Net assets BEFRE 908,430 839,460




Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

HEBEERERME)

31 December 2008 —ZZF)\&+_-_A=+—H

Embry Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

2008 2007
—BENE  —TTrHE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt FET FET
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity AATERIZFEA
holders of the Company iR

Issued capital BT 31 4,011 4,003
Reserves i 33(a) 880,351 811,457
Proposed final and special dividends — #E& 7k 2R 2 K 45 BIIA% 2 15 24,068 24,000
Total equity arEns 908,430 839,460

Cheng Man Tai
ERE R
Director

EBEE

Cheng Pik Ho Liza

BREE
Director

EBE
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Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2008 @§7?%/\¢+:ﬁ =t+—HLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARRERSE ARG 2B
Enterprise
expansion
and Proposed
Share Asset  statutory  Exchange Share final and
Issued  premium Contributed revaluation reserve fluctuation  Goodwill option  Retained special Total
capital account surplus reserve funds reserve reserve reserve profits  dividends equity
Bk
REEff LXBRR EXR® BRE RARS
BRORE ROEEE R4ES W EERES W HEER R REEN REHRS #ER
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET FET FET
(note 33(a)) (note 33(a)) (note 33(a))
(Hi2330) (Hi2336) (Hizs36)
At1 January 2008 RZZENE
—-A-B 4,008 329,240 122,610 2,539 11,768 26,474 (3,168) 5,369 316,626 24,000 839,460
Exchange realignment EXHBE - - - - - 24,304 - - - - 24,304
Totalincome and NEEHR L
expense recognised W
in equity - - - - - 24304 - - - - 24304
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - - - - 71983 - 71983
Totalincome and FEE X
expense for ek
the year = = = = = 24,304 = = 71,983 = 96,287
Issue of shares R 31(b) 8 2,331 - - - - - (868) - - 1,477
Equity-settled share Py S5 v
option arrangements BiEZ 32 - - - - - - - 3229 - - 3229
Share options lapsed BREXRR - - - - - - - (1,034) 1,084 - -
Final 2007 dividend EREXA-FRLF
declared and paid RERSE = = = = = = = = = (24000)  (24,000)
Interim 2008 dividend ZTN\E
PERE 15 - - - - - - - - (8,023) - (8023)
Proposed 2008 final RE-ZTN
and special dividends RERER
HRlkS 15 - - - - - - - - (o4068) 24,068 -
At 31 December 2008 R=ZTNF
+=A=+-A 4,011 331,677 122,610 2,539 11,768 50,778 (3,168) 6,696 357,551* 24,068 908,430
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
I\" A T_"_/\ /\I%EIZ‘E’J% (I"E )

Year ended 31 December 2008 HE—TZT/N\F+-_A=1+—HILtFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RARERRA AR 2 RS
Enterprise
expansion
and Proposed
Share Asset  statutory  Exchange Share final and
Issued  premium Contributed revaluation reserve fluctuation  Goodwill option  Retained special Total
capital account surplus reserve funds reserve reserve reserve profits  dividends equity
Bk
REEff LXBRR EXR® BRE RERE
BRORE ROEEE R4ES e iERES e HERR R REEN REHRS #ER
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
izt TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET FET FET
(note 33(a)) (note 33(a)) (note 33(a))
(H##335) (Hi#2330) (H##338)
At1 January 2007 i 3
-A-H 4,000 327,270 122,610 2,539 12,657 8,561 (3,168) 584 225,184 24,000 724,231
Exchange realignment [k - - - - - 22,494 - - - - 22,494
Total income and PMERRRZ
expense recognised W
in equity - - - - - 22,494 - - - - 22,494
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - = = - 122516 - 12516
Total income and RER M
expense for fk
the year = = = = = 22,494 = = 122,516 = 145,010
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 34b) = - - - (920) (4,581) - - 920 - (4,581)
Issue of shares B0 31(a) g 1,970 - - - - (1,404) - - 569
Equity-settled share MBS
option arrangements BiRER 32 = = = = = = = 6,205 = = 6,205
Share options lapsed %W’E%ﬂ - - - - - - (36) 3% - -
Final 2006 dvidend SRRINZZESE
declared and paid X%ﬁﬂx% - - - - - - - - (24,0000 (24,000)
Interim 2007 dividend 2%t
FERE 15 - - - - - - - - (8,000) - (8,000)
Proposed final 2007 BR-TTtE
dividend RERE 15 - - - - - - - (24,000) 24,000 -
Transfer from retained profis  E& &R - - - - 31 - - - (31) - -
At 31 December 2007 REZ2LE
+=A=+-A 4,003 329,240 122,610* 2,539 11,768" 26,474 (3,168)" 5369 316,625 24,000 839,460
* These reserves accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ﬂ%? AR BT E BE B IEXF 4 A [#15880,351,0008 T (=
HK$880,351,000 (2007: HK$811,457,000) in the consolidated FEL4F £ 811,457,000/87T) °

balance sheet.
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Consolidated

Cash Flow Statement

/\\/T\/\EE 7 ;ﬁiﬁ

Year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZTT/N\F+_A=1+—BILEFE

2008 2007
—EENE —ETF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
HiaE FET FEIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KREEEIBESHRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R 8 Bl Vi A1) 95,103 143,239
Adjustments for: R -
Finance costs BB R A 8 2 118
Interest income F 2 UA 6 (5,673) (11,935)
Depreciation e 9 23,621 10,342
Amortisation of prepaid land Taft LA E R
lease payments ok xic 9 60 62
Loss on write-off of items of property, Wﬁﬁ%% R &
plant and equipment REEE 2 BB 9 65 152
Write-back of impairment allowance of 5 IE! W E 5 ERFUBE RS
trade receivables 9 (730) (316)
Write-off of trade receivables HH eI & 5 8RR 9 968 -
Provision for obsolete inventories, net B%%ﬁiéﬁéﬁ J%’r%éi 9 9,234 9,075
Fair value gains on financial assets NFERE -
at fair value through profit or loss TE?&EEDAQ$1E§‘JEE
L EREE 9 (283) -
Changes in fair value of WEMENTEZE)
an investment property 9 1,000 (3,300)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries S B A Rl Es 6 - (41,998)
Equity-settled share option expenses VARG HE S 1 2 BE RS A 7 2 32 3,229 6,225
126,596 111,664
Increase in inventories FEZN (73,617) (77,085)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables FEUCE ZEEFUR A,/ (38h0) (10,029) 3,371
Increase in prepayments, FENT A T;zi&ﬁﬁﬂ
deposits and other receivables FEU R IEIE H 34(a) (7,766) (5,095)
Increase in financial assets at fair value BPETRIRAAN T ET R
through profit or loss Z BB EI N (22,731) -
Increase in trade and bills payables 8 5 BRI e
=iy 179 7,559
Increase in other payables and accruals H i e~ 5008
FEETFRIAIE AN 34(a) 31,205 1,928
Increase/(decrease) in deferred liabilities EIEEEEN C5d) 1,450 (7)
Cash generated from operations KEMEHE 45,287 42,355
Hong Kong profits tax paid EASTEBRFH (2,525) (418)
Overseas tax paid EEINRIA (12,145) (20,231)
Net cash inflow from operating activities ARSI S MASER 30,617 21,706
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETEZEESHRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2HFILE 9,244 8,241
Purchases of items of property, BEME  BER
plant and equipment Bl 17, 34(a) (59,220) (101,284)
Proceeds from disposal of HERBARZ
subsidiaries, net FTiSEUE « B8 34(b) = 31,070
Decrease in an amount due from JE Uk —FEIREE A R RE R
a related company 23 22,400 -
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged time REBARRIEE A
deposits with original maturity of B iE =8 A 2 R I
more than three months when acquired FEEIFEFORL (3 ) 26 88,636 (100,000)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from WREFSHZBETRAS
investing activities OftH )58 61,060 (161,973)
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2008 2007
—EENE —ETF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt FET FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RETHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares B BETTET1S 5RIE 31(b) 1,477 569
Dividends paid BfRE (32,023) (32,000)
Interest paid ERFLE (2) (118)
Repayment of bank loans EERITER = (24,470)
Net cash outflow from financing activities & EB B L R RRE (30,548) (56,019)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%{smz
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2 () 61,129 (196,286)
Cash and cash equivalents E%ﬂziﬁi&
at beginning of year BEEEY 249,247 431,225
Effect of foreign exchange MG s 8 TR
rate changes, net 14,760 14,308
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEER
AT END OF YEAR REZEEY 325,136 249,247
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERREEEYEH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ZAH
Cash and bank balances e RIRITEEES 26 217,585 145,281
Non-pledged time deposits with REARKRZIEA A
original maturity of less than =18 R Az mEA
three months when acquired TFHIFER 26 107,551 103,966
325,136 249,247

r
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Balance Sheet
BEXR

31 December 2008 —ZEF/\F+=-A=+—H

2008 2007
—EBENF —ETF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
iz FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN 3 25 708,732 641,301
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Prepayments, deposits and TBRRIE - Bk
other receivables H i fE R IR 22 148 2,679
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIRESEY 26 53,276 102,755
Total current assets ENEEMAE 53,424 105,434
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Other payables and accruals Hith e3R8 K
FEETFRIR 28 3,180 762
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENEEFE 50,244 104,672
Net assets BEFE 758,976 745,973
EQUITY e
Issued capital BT 31 4,011 4,003
Reserves EE 33(b) 730,897 717,970
Proposed final and special dividends  ##/E A< 2% 8 52 55 Bl AR &, 15 24,068 24,000
Total equity “arEEs 758,976 745,973
Cheng Man Tai Cheng Pik Ho Liza
EREHER EREE
Director Director

EF EF
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2008 —ZF/\F+=-A=+—H

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 29 August 2006
under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961,

as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
registered office address of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
the Cayman Islands and the principal place of business of the
Company is located at 7th Floor, Wyler Centre Il, 200 Tai Lin
Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 25 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Harmonious World Limited
(“Harmonious World”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), and is considered by the directors as
the Company’s ultimate holding company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for the investment property and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars and all amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand
(HK$’000) except where otherwise indicated.

2.1

ARER
RARARZZTEZSANFENAZ+NLBRE
HAEHEERERRNE(—LAN—F&
Bl= - KiRE RkiEE]) sk REERH
BERAT o AR A A S E ik
£ Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the
Cayman Islands ° MANA AIH) = 2 &
2R BBIRER AN EYE 2005 E T
DZH7HE -

ARFNEE L ARARR - AHHE
PNOEEE-EI T 0 R o BT
25 o ENA MM E BRI E L MERX
29 -

K A 8] A& Harmonious World Limited
([ Harmonious World | ) 8B B A &)
Harmonious World &R R B EZ A S ([ 37
BREZHE ) FMKINAR EFRAB
Harmonious World 7282 R B AL A
e

2HEE

ZEWBHRERREBZE SIS ([EE
SETEAE |) B F BB IS ER
(TEAMBHEEL ) (BEMBEEEMH
BREER - BEGHEA([BAGFTE
Q) E#EE)  FEARSARIEEE
NRVGEHIRBRERE - RFMHBHRR
BELRAEER - EREMERIZAF
ERERRIIRcEREENREAE
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(FHT) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
AR R ()

31 December 2008 —ZZF)\&+_-A=+—H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2008. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from

the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All significant income, expenses
and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intercompany
transactions and intercompany balances within the Group are
eliminated on consolidation.

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new interpretations
and amendments to HKFRSs for the first time for the current
year’s financial statements. Except for in certain cases, giving
rise to new and revised accounting policies and additional
disclosures, the adoption of these new interpretations and
amendments has had no significant effect on these financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 39
Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement
and HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —
Reclassification of Financial
Assets

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
Amendments

HK(FRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury

Share Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their
Interaction

HK(FRIC)-Int 14

2.1

2.2

2NEEE)
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2.2

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
The principal effects of adopting these new and revised
HKFRSs are as follows:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and HKFRS

7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures -
Reclassification of Financial Assets

As the Group has not reclassified any of its financial
instruments, the amendments have had no impact
on the financial position or results of operations of the
Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury
Share Transactions

As the Group currently has no such transactions,
the interpretation has had no impact on the financial
position or results of operations of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession
Arrangements

No member of the Group is an operator and,
therefore, this interpretation has had no impact on the
financial position or results of operations of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on
a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

As the Group has no defined benefit scheme, the
interpretation has had no effect on these financial
statements.

2.2
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RIS RAMIE ()
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23 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27  Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-

Amendments

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 8

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendment

HK(FRIC)-Int 13

HK(FRIC)-Int 15

HK(FRIC)-Int 16

HK(FRIC)-Int 17

time Adoption of HKFRSs
and HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements - Cost of
an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associate '

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment - Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations '

Business Combinations 2
Operating Segments

Presentation of Financial
Statements
Borrowing Costs '

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements 2
Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and
HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements -
Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations
Avrising on Liquidation
Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement - Eligible Hedged
[tems 2
Customer Loyalty Programmes '

Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate *

Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation 1

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to
Owners 2

2.3
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2.3

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Apart from the above, the HKICPA has also issued
Improvements to HKFRSs* which sets out amendments

to a number of HKFRSs primarily with a view to removing
inconsistencies and clarify wording. Except for the amendment
to HKFRS 5 which is effective for the accounting periods on
or after 1 January 2010, other amendments are effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
although there are separate transitional provisions for each
standard.

1 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2009

2 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2010

Improvements to HKFRSs contains amendments to HKFRS 5,
HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS 8, HKAS 10, HKAS 16, HKAS 18,
HKAS 19, HKAS 20, HKAS 23, HKAS 27, HKAS 28, HKAS
29, HKAS 31, HKAS 34, HKAS 36, HKAS 38, HKAS 39,
HKAS 40 and HKAS 41.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of

the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, it has concluded that while the adoption
of HKFRS 8 and HKAS 1 (Revised) may result in new or
amended disclosures and the adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised)
may result in changes in accounting policies, these new and
revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on
the Group’s results of operations and financial position.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the cost of the business combination over

the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’
identifiable assets, and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill arising on the
acquisition of subsidiaries is recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet as an asset.

Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwiill is reviewed for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired.

As at the acquisition date, any goodwill acquired is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units expected to benefit from
the combination’s synergies. Impairment is determined by
assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit,
to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part
of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of

in this circumstance is measured on the basis of the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

2.4
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Gooawill previously eliminated against the consolidated
reserves

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before 1 January 2001

was eliminated against the consolidated goodwill reserve in
the year of acquisition. The Group applied the transitional
provisions of HKFRS 3 that permitted such goodwill to
remain eliminated against the consolidated goodwill reserve
and that required such goodwill not to be recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the Group disposes
of all or part of the business to which that goodwill relates or
when a cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates
becomes impaired.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) contrals, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (i) has an interest
in the Group that gives it significant influence over the
Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its holding company;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

® the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

Q) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

2.4

FEEHEHRBE®)

BE#E)
TERTEAR B [ 1 15 2 BT 2R

—EEF A HRRBEEZEHE
TEEEFEZRABERKEBEE - A%
ERAEEMBRELEFIRBER
E o ZAEAMRABREEESARERFE
i MEAKELER FRAEERL
ERPHARDETR - N LB AE L
BIREM BN ER - FRAPESTER
fra R IER -

BEAL
ETIERT » BEALSHRRERE
EHRE -

@) EBATEESEB EkZEH
AR : (MR AEBSR T AL
470 ) sl R AN £ [ 52 FE R 5 (i)
BANDR) 2 WA EAREE
BIBERNTET s (ii)Eb A
FEEAEE 2 EHE

(o) EEALRBEBA
©) AL RERIZEHEE

@  AEALRAKESHEZERARZ
FEEBWAR

© B BN L2 (a) 3K (d) B P (T A
TZERRE

0  BEALSHEESREES (e
TR LA A LR - R
HAEARE  REEBEEEAR
EEMEEAYEZER %

@  ARALRATEEESHERA
SEREALZERBZEBRAM
R BRI AR AET 8

85



86

Embry Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
AR R ()

31 December 2008 —ZZF)\&+_-A=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets, the investment property and
goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the income statement in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such

an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill and financial assets is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of

any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such

an impairment loss is credited to the income statement in

the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in

progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

and any impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use
of an item of property, plant and equipment, and where the
cost of the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a
replacement.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If
the total of the reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to
the income statement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is
credited to the income statement to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset, the
relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in
respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits
as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life . The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the lease terms

Leasehold improvements 4.5% to 20%

Plant and machinery 10% to 20%

Furniture, fixtures and office 10% to 20%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20% to 25%
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each balance
sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal
or retirement recognised in the income statement in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant assets.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment or investment
properties when completed and ready for use.

Investment property

Investment property is an interest in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment

and depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” above.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment property (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of an
investment property are included in the income statement in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement
in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans

and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an
embedded derivative when the Group first becomes a party to
it and assesses whether an embedded derivative is required
to be separated from the host contract when the analysis
shows that the economic characteristics and risks of the
embedded derivatives are not closely related to those of the
host contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required under the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets
after initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate,
re-evaluates this designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Gains or losses on these financial assets are recognised in the
income statement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised
in the income statement does not include any dividends on
these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policy set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets may be designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria
are met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis; (i) the assets are part of a group of
financial assets which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the financial
asset contains an embedded derivative that would need to be
separately recorded.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Such assets are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation
process.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in
organised financial markets is determined by reference to
quoted market bid prices at the close of business at the
balance sheet date. For investments where there is no active
market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques.
Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another
instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted cash
flow analysis; and other valuation models.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have

not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance
account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in
the income statement.

Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to

an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement, to the
extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to trade receivables, a provision for impairment

is made when there is objective evidence (such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the
debtor and significant changes in the technological, market
economic or legal environment that have an adverse effect

on the debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect all of
the amounts due under the original terms of an invoice. The
carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised
when they are assessed as uncollectible.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
where:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;
° the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from

the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them
in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/
or purchased option (including a cash-settled option or similar
provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset
that the Group may repurchase, except in the case of a written
put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision)
on an asset measured at fair value, where the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the
fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including interest-
bearing loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables
and interest-bearing bank loans are initially stated at fair

value less directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. The related
interest expense is recognised within “Finance costs” in the
income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value after making due allowances for obsolete or slow
moving items. Cost is determined on the weighted average
basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on

the estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under the operating leases are charged to

the income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide
a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in
the cost of the leasehold land and buildings as a finance lease
in property, plant and equipment.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4
(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance
sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is included in
finance costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
is recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates
to items that are recognised in the same or a different period
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;
(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the

effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, where the shareholder’s right to
receive payment has been established.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4
(continued)

Dividends

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of

association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the balance sheet, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they
are recognised as a liability.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products

is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Government grants

Government grants, including a subsidy for the expenditure
incurred in construction cost of infrastructure project, are
recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to

an expense item, it is recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the
costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant
relates to an asset, the fair value is deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the income statement by
way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 32 to the financial statements. In valuing equity-
settled transactions, no account is taken of any performance
conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the
shares of the Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the relevant employees become
fully entitled to the award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each
balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income statement
for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a
market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that
all other performance conditions are satisfied.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as

a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not

been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-

based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if

it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as an
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as
at the balance sheet date is permitted to be carried forward
and utilised by the respective employees in the following year.
An accrual is made at the balance sheet date for the expected
future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by the
employees and carried forward.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefits schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on

a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentages
of its payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension schemes.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
using the functional currency rates ruling at the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated

in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
All differences are taken to the income statement. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than Hong Kong dollars. As at the balance
sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and their
income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars

at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are included in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the
deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,

the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between leasehold land element from leasehold
land and buildings

The Group has determined that the carrying value of the land
element of the leasehold land and buildings held in Hong
Kong in relation to the value of the entire lease is insignificant
and cannot be reliably allocated. Accordingly, the leasehold
land and buildings held in Hong Kong has been treated as a
single unit and accounted for under HKAS 16 Property, plant
and equipment.

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into a commercial property lease on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of this property which is leased out on
an operating lease.

Change of accounting estimates

In the previous years, the residual value of property, plant
and equipment (excluding leasehold land and buildings) was
set at a standard of 10%. Based on the residual value of the
disposal of certain items of the property, plant and equipment,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
residual value should be set at a range of 0% to 10% so as
to more accurately reflect the performance of the Group.
Accordingly, with effect from 1 January 2008, the residual
value is changed from 10% to a range of 0% to 10%. This
constitutes a change in accounting estimates and is applied
prospectively. This change in residual value has increased the
depreciation charge of approximately HK$5,716,000 for the
year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

Estimation of fair value of an investment property

As described in note 18 to the financial statements, the
investment property was revalued at the balance sheet date
on an open market value, existing state basis by independent
professional valuers. Such valuations were based on

certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. In making the
judgement, the Group considers information from current
prices in an active market for similar properties and uses
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at each balance sheet date.

Valuation of share options

The fair value of options granted under share option schemes
is determined using the binomial model. The significant inputs
into the model were share price at the grant date, exercise
price, risk-free interest rate, dividend yield, expected volatility
and suboptimal exercise factor. When the actual results of
the inputs differ from the management’s estimate, it will have
impact on share option expenses and the related share option
reserve of the Company.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s primary business segment is the manufacture
and sale of ladies’ brassieres, panties, swimwear and
sleepwear. Since this is the only business segment of the
Group, no further analysis thereof is presented.

Segment information is presented below in respect of the
Group’s geographical segment, which is regarded as the
secondary segment. In determining the Group’s geographical
segments, revenues are attributed to the segments based on
the location of the customers, and assets are attributed to the
segments based on the location of the assets.
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4.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, PEER(E)
Mainland
China Hong Kong Others Total
B KR B Hith &t
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENE ZTTHF ZEENF —ITTtF ZEENE ZTTtF ZEBENF ZITT4F
HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FE FET FET FET
Revenue from external~ SNREF
customers pdE 856,113 590,697 90,743 83,558 26,486 37,413 973,342 711,668
Segment assets NEEE 783,057 568,528 246,116 365,950 - - 1,029,173 934,478
Capital expenditure ERNEAR
incurred during Fx
the year 55,095 100,910 190 374 - - 55,285 101,284
REVENUE 5. Yz
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the Wz BIAREREZ L%5E - IBHBREER
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns R HRERERERZEHEEE o

and trade discounts.
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6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. HAn A K Wz
Group
REMH
2008 2007
—EENF —TTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Other income Hiug A
Bank interest income BITH B A 5,392 11,935
Other interest income (note 13(a)(iv)) E bR B A (H 5 13(8)(1v)) 281 -
Gross rental income AW ALBTE 2,074 2,167
Subsidy income from the REHFEARLH
People’s Republic of China (THREDEFZ
(the “PRC") government: AR
Reinvestment tax refunds # BIRE R 2,852 1,811
Energy saving technology and EigERIR REmIES*
product award fund * 561 -
Enterprises development fund * TEERES 132 =
Patent subsidies * BRI 56 -
Others Hith 1,398 1,373
12,746 17,286
Gains Wz
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBA R
(note 13(b)) (H17E13b)) = 41,998
Fair value gains on financial assets BBEERAANTESRZ
at fair value though profit or loss CRIEEL T EYE 283 =
Foreign exchange differences, net EHER  F58 6,723 6,656
Changes in fair value of an investment &% A FEE )
property (note 18) (H1a£18) (1,000) 3,300
6,006 51,954
18,752 69,240

According to the Income Tax Law of the PRC, the Group

is entitled to refunds of corporate income tax, subject to

the approval from the relevant offices of the Tax Bureau

in the PRC. In prior years, the Group reinvested the profit
distributions received from its subsidiary in a new entity
established in the PRC and received approvals from the

Tax Bureau in relation to the reinvestment tax refunds. The
refunds are determined based on certain percentages of the
profit distribution reinvested in prior years.

There are no untulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to
this income.
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7. OTHER EXPENSES 7. HithBasz
Group
IREEE
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Charitable donation RREBN 2,635 -
Loss on write-off of items of property, — Mis4%% - HE R
plant and equipment REEE 2 EE 65 152
Others =) 20 Q)
2,720 143
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. Rl & R A
Group
REE
2008 2007
—EENF —ERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Interest on: FE :
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable BRAFRNEEZ
within five years RITERRIBEY 2 S
Bank loans repayable over five years BN AFEREE ZRITER = 113

Total interest PP BN 2 118
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. BR%E B A
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REEZBFHID=MENG (Gt A) :
(crediting):
Group
REE
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FBIT
Cost of inventories sold BEFERAN 208,321 160,123
Depreciation e 23,621 10,342
Amortisation of prepaid land lease A LA E
payments FRIE 2 B 4E 60 62
Minimum lease payments under BENTEE2&LEEY
operating leases in respect of: 2 XEMEFA :
Land and buildings T MAEF 40,940 25,982
Contingent rents of retail outlets in BEARIANZES
department stores KIS AHE 243,527 171,826
Employee benefits expenses (excluding EERIMFEXZ(TEEESE
directors’ remuneration - note 70): HEN—F1aE10) -
Wages and salaries TITERHS 203,124 146,843
Provision for long service payments REARRTG S B 1,521 192
Retirement benefits scheme RIREFETEI
contributions R 25,966 17,100
Equity-settled share option expenses ARR#E 2 N B AR AE R 2 1,475 3,472
232,086 167,607
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AN £ 2,560 2,178
Advertising and counter decoration B MBI AR
expenses 82,890 57,706
Provision for obsolete inventories, net PREFERE  F5 9,234 9,075
Write-back of impairment allowance of [0l fE I B 5 BR OB (B R
trade receivables (730) (316)
Write-off of trade receivables HsH PR U E SRR 968 =
Research and development expenditure HERFEERY 2,764 1,751
Loss on write-off of items of property, WMsEIZE - BB R
plant and equipment EHH Z B8 65 162
Fair value gains on financial assets N ERE - BiBEEERNA
at fair value through profit or loss NEEYERZ EREE (283) -
Gross and net rental income AW AR5 K& F5E (2,074) (2,167)
Changes in fair value of an investment BEMENTELE
property 1,000 (3,300)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 13(b))  H & /B A RIS (H17E13(0b)) - (41,998)
Foreign exchange differences, net EREE 55 (6,723) (6,656
Bank interest income HRITHFEWA (5,392) (11,935)

Other interest income

A A SUA

(281)
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10.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

EEHHM

IRIREE AP E s EmAR BT EmRA) &
EBNAEHFEI1MEENENES S
BZAT

Group
REE
2008 2007
—EENF = —TTH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees we 720 720
Other emoluments: Hiof < :
Salaries, allowances and benefits e R REYETR
in kind 8,658 6,944
Bonuses* TEAT* 4,231 =
Equity-settled share option expenses  LARRHESS 1< 7 B AR HERE 1,754 2,753
Retirement benefits scheme RNENET SR
contributions 48 48
15,411 10,465
Executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments * RARIMITESBRBEIREICL - MAEALHE

which are determined as a percentage of the profit after tax of the
Group.

The fair value of these share options, which has been
recognised in the income statement over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

APE AR BBRREEN N —E B S HLERE °

AREBAANERERERNERE &
NFEREHBRERE - fEARNFEHR
BENTRHFALBEEHHKESR
A o
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

10. EEFME)

2008 —EENE
Equity-
Salaries, settled  Retirement
allowances share benefits
and benefits option scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses expenses contributions remuneration
MRS AT
E2 = .11 ZHBRE RIKGEF
e REYFHZ AL 53 HE 3 BEH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors: HITEE
Mr. Cheng Man Tai HHRLE - 2,639 1,377 524 12 4,552
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza ey = 2,401 1,039 321 12 3,773
Madam Ngok Ming Chu SRRk &+ - 2,237 1,089 469 12 3,807
Mr. Hung Hin Kit LB GRAE - 1,381 726 230 12 2,349
- 8,658 4,231 1,544 48 14,481
Independent non-executive BV IEHTEE -
directors:
Mr. Lau Siu Ki BELE 240 - - 70 - 310
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung TR AE 240 - - 70 - 310
Prof. Lee T. S. FREHE 240 - - 70 - 310
720 - - 210 - 930
720 8,658 4,231 1,754 48 15,411
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. EEEM =)
2007 “ETELEF
Equity-
Salaries, settled Retirement
allowances share benefits
and benefits option scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses expenses  contributions  remuneration
AR RS f+F
e 28 pd 14 RGN
e  REWAZ biFan Fx ATl ol

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET T T THET

Executive directors: HITEE
Mr. Cheng Man Tai BHEEE - 2,096 - 896 12 3,004
Ms.ChengPk Holiza &4+ = 1,852 - 513 12 2,377
Madam Ngok Ming Chu BTt - 1,789 - 793 12 2,594
Mr. Hung Hin Kit B A - 1,207 - 341 12 1,560
- 6,944 - 2,543 48 9,535
Independent non-executive BV IEHTEE -
directors:
Mr. Lau Siu Ki BBESE 240 - - 70 - 310
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung TR AE 240 - - 70 - 310
Prof. Lee T. S. FREYE 240 - - 70 - 310
720 - - 210 - 930
720 6,944 - 2,753 48 10,465
There were no arrangements under which a director waived B RAERI NI R E = S U sk A B 2 U E (A

or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. B2 2B -
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11.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2007: four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 10 to the financial statements above. Details of the
remuneration of the remaining one (2007: one) non-director,
highest paid employee for the year are as follows:

11.

AEREHFAL
FARERRFATIEENEESR(ZS
THF: R)  HEMFEBS R X
FEARMFE108M - FREMB—ZIEES
B EE(CTTLE : — RN
B

Group

REE
2008 2007
—B2B\E  -TTLH
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries and allowances e RoERL 1,629 1,499
Equity-settled share option expenses  LARS#E 3~ BE Bai B 2 18 480

Retirement benefits scheme RINEFIGT SR

contributions 12 12
1,659 1,091

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

FMBRATARZEEE R ERHEE
AR -

Number of employees

EE A

2008 2007

—EENFE —ETF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,00078 7T = =

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/8 T2 = =
1,500,000/ 7T

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ L& 1 1
2,000,000 7T

1 1

The fair value of these share options, which has been
recognised in the income statement over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above non-director, highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.

AREBAAERERERNERE &
NFERRLBREE - fFEARNFER
BROSBHA LIRS FHIFESEBH
SWEFRNA -
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12.

TAX 12. B\
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% ERNERNEBEENGESTSBEL
(2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in ZERTEAR  1816.5% ( —EE L 4F -
Hong Kong during the year. The lower Hong Kong profits tax 17 5%)2@% NEH B o KRR FBT
rate is effective from the year of assessment 2008/2009, and BHMER-_TBENE  —ZENERHE
so is applicable to the assessable profits arising in Hong Kong Fﬁ;ﬁ%i,& WtERREZE — ST N\F
for the whole year ended 31 December 2008. + - A=+ B EAFEEHEREBE
A7 FERTE A o
Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law (the “New PRC BER_ZEEN\F— A —HRAKBERZH
Tax Law”) of the PRC being effective on 1 January 2008, B ERERE(FPREMERIE]) » &
the PRC income tax rate is unified to 25% for all enterprises. BT SR RGN B ESG—A25%
Under an implementation guidance note of the New PRC Tax RIEFPBEAETE 2 EiES| ([ Eitts
Law (the “Implementation Guidance”), enterprises established 2l1)  RABHFHRBEEFHEARNKYZ 1
before the publication of the New PRC Tax Law were entitled %*ﬁ@é?ﬁm AT MBI TR e (D ZEFT
to preferential treatments of a reduced corporate income tax BRI i%ﬁﬁ SR |) v BEFS
rate (the “CIT rate”) granted by the relevant tax authorities. u:% FiSF R R SN \F—A—HB%
The new CIT rate would be gradually increased from the ==l E m,ﬁixﬁ HEAE AFERZHHE
preferential rate to 25% within 5 years after the effective date B RIEINE25% o 5 EFFE E HAR R Al
of the New PRC Tax Law on 1 January 2008. Enterprises ;Eﬁ‘; FERE R RN R e 2 DA
that are currently entitled to exemptions or reductions from MESHINFE  AZEZETHRERA
the standard income tax rate for a fixed term may continue to ke
enjoy such treatment until the fixed term expires.
In addition, taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been &tﬁvl\ H A fE R RS A 2 BLIE B IR AN
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in EREEBEER 2 BRI RIBER X
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, W HREREOIEFE -
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.
Group
REE
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Group: NEE
Current - Hong Kong BNEAFGIE — B 715 500
Current - Mainland China BNVEAF 18 — A B AR
Charge for the year FRFRIE 21,812 19,482
Underprovision/(overprovision) BRAFEZBERIRE
in prior years (FBRERE) (36) 59
Deferred (note 30) EIE(H75#30) 629 682
Total tax charge for the year FEZBaFREST S 23,120 20,723
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12.  TAX (continued) 12.  BE(E)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before AR R R RERZBOHE QR FMHTE 2
tax using the statutory rates for the regions in which the EEME GBI GEFEE 2 BEY -
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to BFERAERRTE 7 IR RN
the tax expense at the effective tax rates is as follows: T
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Profit before tax BRAE AR T 95,103 143,239
Tax at the applicable rates to profits A BERE RN &
in the countries concerned ZMEGE 2 1A 22,717 37,127
Lower tax rate for specific provinces in FRAEREEDZ
Mainland China BIEHIE (4,565) (12,905)
Lower tax rate due to tax holiday A EEM N 2K (2,049) —
Effect on opening deferred tax of ﬁ%ﬁ 1EE¥TE7Q%)JLL%)%IE (145) =
decrease in rate (note 30) 252 (H17#30)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of ¥ LAFEE  BNEAFIIE
previous years AR (36) 59
Income not subject to tax BERD 2 WA (1,570) (9,508)
Expenses not deductible for tax I 53 3,663 7,776
Effect of withholding tax at 5% and HAREE P EKTE AR
10% on the distributable profits of A oI MRS % 2 10%
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries LNl -Z 4,200 -
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised AR AT FE RER
in previous years TIAETE (126) (2,288)
Tax losses not recognised REERTIEE B 1,031 462

Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate RAREE 7 ERFHRE
ZBIAXR H 23,120 20,723
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13.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 13. HEEALRS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere (a) bRz B TS R B At B Pt 2 32
in these financial statements, the Group had the S48 REBRERNERG EEA T
following material transactions with related parties ETZEARSWT ¢

during the year:

2008 2007
—EENF e
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HizF FHETT FET
Continuing transactions B S
Purchases of furniture for mEEAREBE
counters and shops WAL N JE A
from related companies 2154 (i) 17,190 16,637
Rental expense for a property  [a@8:&E A 721
paid to a related company Y%z e (ir) 2,422 -
Rental expenses for a MARRESES
warehouse paid to a BEZHERY
director of the
Company (iii) 144 144
Discontinued transaction BRIER S
Interest income on promissory  [A1 BZiE A ] ENE H,
note received from SERZFBWHA

a related company (iv) 281 -
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13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) (continued)

Notes:

)

(i

(i)

(V)

The purchases of furniture for counters and shops
from related companies controlled by a son of a
director of the Company were made according to
the terms similar to those offered by the Group’s
independent suppliers. The balances owing to
related companies as at 31 December 2008 were
HK$3,715,000 (2007: Nil) and were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable in accordance with
normal trading terms. The amounts have been
included in the other payables and accruals as at the
balance sheet date.

The rental expenses which were paid to a related
company controlled by a director of the Company
and two sons of a director of the Company were
determined with reference to the then prevailing
market conditions.

The rental expenses were determined with reference
to the then prevailing market conditions.

The promissory note issued by a related company
controlled by a director of the Company and two
sons of a director of the Company carried interest
which was determined after considering the
prevailing interest rates offered by commercial banks
in Hong Kong for commercial loans. The promissory
note was fully settled in March 2008.

The above continuing transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The directors are of the opinion that the above
transactions were conducted in the ordinary course of
business of the Group.

13.

BREALRZ(#E)
(a) (&)
Hiat -

)

(i

RAARARZ —ERRZFIEH2
BE A RIIE BB REH 2R
A 2 1R R B 72N 55 (B 98 37 (it R
RIFTIRME Z GRS c R=F
TNE+_A=+—ARNHE
BN A2 KRR 3,715,000 7T
(ZZBZEF T ) HER
. BEREE—MEBRKRX
Hig - ZEREEREERT
VEE h FE ST RIE R FEST RIE o

AMARBEERAAAZ &
SHIRA T AT SR
Atz e T2 E B
ZTREE

HERAX T2 EER 2 MLE
=

AABEERARAZ &S
B 5 F BTl 2 BE A )
PEEIT 2 AL RIE 2 R B IA 2
ZEEBHRRITIEEE R
HZHAEEE - REER_F
ZNF=ZAE2EEE -

BRI ETHRBIE14AF - LA FRE
RGBRIFERERS °

EERR LR SRNAEERE
EBRETAETT ©
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13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Disposal of subsidiaries to a related company

On 27 November 2007, the Group disposed of
certain subsidiaries to a related company controlled
by a director of the Company and two sons of a
director of the Company for a total consideration of
HK$56,000,000, comprising cash of HK$33,600,000
and the issuance of a promissory note in the amount
of HK$22,400,000 as further detailed in note 23 to the
financial statements.

The Group made a gain of approximately
HK$41,998,000 thereon. Further details of this
transaction were set out in a circular to the
shareholders of the Company dated 11 December
2007.

13. EBEALXZ @)

(b)

HENBART—EEELT
RZEZTLE+—A=++tRH "
AEBAARBDEERARAZ
—EEMM R T TR 2 B
NRHEAETHBAR @ AR E
/4 56,000,000 BT © BIER
38,600,000 JT K& B 17 A 2 &
22,400,000/ 7T * FFIEEN 155
FMIEE23 o

& (B Bk B4R 4941 ,998,000/5 7T
U - BRI LM 52—
BEHENARATN_EE+E+-A
+—BRREE L ZBEK -

Compensation of key management personnel of (c) AEEETEEEAS 2 HH
the Group
2008 2007
—EENF —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Short term employee benefits %2 Bi{E E 125 19,749 10,999
Post-employment benefits BREES £ 12 F 309 93
Equity-settled share option VARR #ESZ A< 2
expenses FEAR IR 2,231 4,125
Total compensation paid to key sz f}FF EE
management personnel A B 2 485 22,289 15,217

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included
in note 10 to the financial statements.

EEFMOFBENMBEER
FiEE10 -
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14. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE 14.

COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2008 includes a
profit of HK$40,320,000 (2007: HK$58,154,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company

DR A A B ET

Eﬁ%:i@?)\fﬁJr—ﬂ_Jr RIEFEA

DA A ARG S B ST
40,320,000/ 7T ( —F T4 158,154,000
BT RFRMNERARAABHREA

(note 33(b)). 518 (Pf5E33(0))
15. DIVIDENDS 15. BRE
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interim - HK2.0 cents (2007: HERAR S *lﬂﬂﬁtLﬂx
HK2.0 cents) per ordinary share 20BN ZFZT£F : 2.0/81l) 8,023 8,000
Proposed final and special - # Jfﬁiﬁﬂﬂx S REFRIIRE —FR
HK3.0 cents (2007: HK6.0 cents) AR Bl A3.07 1
and HK3.0 cents (2007: Nil), (_22t¢ : 6.071l) 24,068 24,000
respectively, per ordinary share FIOBI(ZZEZLF : T)
32,091 32,000

The proposed final and special dividends for the year are
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 16.

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2008 is based on the profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company of
HK$71,983,000 (2007: HK$122,516,000) and the weighted
average of 400,989,000 (2007: 400,008,000) ordinary shares
during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2008 is based on the profit attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the Company of HK$71,983,000
(2007: HK$122,516,000). The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the 400,989,000
(2007: 400,003,000) ordinary shares as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average of
2,679,000 (2007: 4,532,000) ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise
of all share options outstanding during the year.

FRFIRRER R RS RIS AFAR
RN FEfERBE RS LU -

RARERFEABGERET

BHE_ZZN\F+= ﬂ AF=E 5=
SRERNBFIZA NG L BERTEA
ﬁ’émirﬁiﬁéﬂﬁ,983,0005%7‘3(:2%4:
F 1 122,516,000 70 ) & F KK 15 A o0
#E S 1585 400,989,000 % (ZE T+ 4 :
400,003,0008%) @A & o

BHE—ZT)\Ft+-_A=1+—"HIFESF
R BERFBEFARQRAERFTE A
JE{)& 771,983,000 0 ( Z T ZEHF
122,516,000 70 ) 5t & + M ar & TR A
REBRMEFHHEERARFESRE
Z!»‘&i'JE’J4OO,989OOOH§(f$9§t¢ :
400,003,0004% ) E@A% - ARBERAFER
FTA M ARTTE BN R ATTERAENR
BB 1THY I B AR N4 £ 39 £2,679,000 A%
(ZZZ+F : 4,532,0000%) °



Embry Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BTSRRI ()

31 December 2008 —ZZF)\&+_-_A=+—H

119

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 9% BERRE
Group AEE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor  Construction
buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
gL HENE B £ER
kT £ BRER#E WAZRE A& KEIR )
HK$'000 HK$7000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T&r F&r FEn FEr FEr FEr F&r
31 December 2008 ZEE\FTZB=1-H
Cost: A
At 1 January 2008 RZZE\E-A-A 56,146 3,690 46,557 76,296 13,544 76,832 273,065
Additions NE - - 9,322 19,683 1,087 25,193 55,285
Write-off s - - (46) (1,462) (635) - (2,143)
Transfers EEL S 82,590 - - 10,599 - (93,189) -
Exchange realignment ~ E} 3% 6,698 - 3,128 4,634 586 120 15,166
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE
+ZA=1t-H 145,434 3,690 58,961 109,750 14,582 8,956 341,373
Accumulated depreciation:  Z5H7E :
At 1 January 2008 R=EEN\E-A-H 21,005 3,690 29,076 44,849 9,251 - 108,771
Provided during the year ~ ER&E 3413 - 3,347 15,068 1,793 - 23,621
Write-off ik - - (41) (1,414) (623) - (2,078)
Exchange realignment JE i A% 1,017 - 2,006 2,458 318 - 5,859
At 31 December 2008 R-ZENE
+-A=1+-H 25,435 3,690 35,288 60,961 10,799 - 136,173
Net book value: FEFE:
At31 December 2008 AZEBN\E
+ZA=1-H 119,999 - 23,673 48,789 3,783 8,956 205,200




120

Embry Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
AR R ()

31 December 2008 —ZZF)\&+_-A=+—H

17.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17. W% BERREE)
Group REE
Fumniture,
Leasehold fixtures
[and and Leasehold Plant and and offce Motor ~ Construction
buldings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
gL Aanx fril - %ER
kg e BRRER HNE e IR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK8'000
AT AT AT AT AT A7 AT
31 December 2007 “EEE+R=1-H
Cost: B
At1 January 2007 R-EZ+5-A-H 71,219 3690 36,631 54,448 12,323 - 178,311
Addttions RE - - 6,781 19,131 1,620 73,752 101,284
Wite-off ik = - @) (1,362) (757) - (2,121)
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HERBA A
(note 34(b)) (Hizs4p) (17920) - - (60) (210) - (18,190)
Exchange realignment ~ E} 3% 2847 - 3,147 4139 568 3,080 13,781
At31 December 2007 R-EBAE
+ZA=1t-H 56,146 3,690 46,557 76,296 13,644 76,332 273,065
Accumulated depreciation: 257 :
At1 January 2007 R-EEtE-A-A 21,706 3,690 26,634 37,926 8,838 - 98,793
Provided during the year A 2,34 - 1,190 5927 901 - 10,342
Wiite-off bt = = 2) (1299) (668) - (1969)
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEKEBAR
(note 34(b)) (Wiz34p) (4,156) - - (60) (189) - (4,405)
Exchange realignment A 1,132 - 2,154 2,355 369 - 6,010
At31 December 2007 W-TELE
T-A=1+-H 21,006 3690 29976 44,849 9,251 - 108,771
Net ook value; REHE -
At 31 December 2007 REEELE
+ZA=1-H 36,141 = 16,581 31,447 429 76,332 164,294
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17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
The Group’s leasehold land and buildings at cost included
above are held under the following lease terms:

17. Y% BERRESE)
REBREATHEFHFA Ll ARK
FIRRZHE i R

Group

REE
2008 2007
—EENF = —TTH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Medium term leases in Hong Kong REB 2P HTEY) 28,605 28,605
Medium term leases outside Hong Kong & 7&1E4h 2 1 ERFA LY 113,810 24,701
Long term leases outside Hong Kong EHEEINZ REEL 3,019 2,840
145,434 56,146

At 31 December 2008, the buildings in Mainland China
included certain buildings with a net book value of
approximately HK$86,159,000 (2007: Nil) for which the Group
is still in the process of obtaining the building ownership
certificates. These buildings are erected on lands for which
the relevant land use rights certificates have been obtained by
the Group.

R-BENE+-A=+—0  EFEX
b= RIEF B IEE T IRME F{E 486,159,000
BIL(ZEELF  T)METF - AEED
EENZEEFHMAEER - NEEHE
B X S8 TR - 8O AR BE L 3 (5 PR R

E o
A2
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18.  INVESTMENT PROPERTY 18. REYE
Group
REE
2008 2007
—SENF  —ETH
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEREE 31,000 27,700
Changes in fair value (notes 6 and 9) NEEZEE(H26K%9) (1,000) 3,300
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HZEAEE 30,000 31,000

The Group’s investment property is held under the medium
term lease and is situated at 6th Floor, Wyler Centre Il, 200
Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong, as
office building.

The Group’s investment property was revalued on 31
December 2008 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an
independent professionally qualified valuer, at HK$30,000,000
on an open market, existing state basis. The investment
property is leased to a third party under an operating lease,
further summary details of which are included in note 35(a) to
the financial statements.

RNEB 2 A YTy AR R E (e
DREEF URBBI AP AEE
2005 (& P L2861 -

REBZIREMERBILSESERGE
MEBEZITERA AR AR S RIRLE
ER-ZZEENF+_A=+—HEMAE
30,000,000/ T ° ;2% B M THRIBL &
OB TFE=F - HFBHRHBHRE
Bt sE35(a) °
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19.  PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 19. FEMLHBAERE
Group
REE
2008 2007
—EENE  —TTH
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost: B
At 1 January R—A—§8 3,768 6,162
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34(b)) HEM B AR (A:E34(0b)) - (2,838)
Exchange realignment B 5, 3 FE 238 444
At 31 December Rt+—A=+—8H 4,006 3,768
Amortisation: By
At 1 January R—HA—H = 361
Recognised during the year FNHER 60 62
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34(b)) HEMB R R (A12234(b)) - (452)
Exchange realignment 0 3 A 1 29
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 61 -
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+=—A=+—BZEEE 3,945 3,768
Current portion included in FTATERMFUE » e Kk
prepayments, deposits and E b ERIE 2
other receivables (note 22) BVERER (R (K7 5E22) (82) (38)
Non-current portion FERNERER (D 3,863 3,730
The leasehold lands are situated in Mainland China and AEAE A ARBE AR - HEEMN T

the respective prepaid land lease payments are held under
medium term leases.

WHEFRIRBEHHBLORAE -
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20. INVENTORIES 20. H#E
Group
AREEE
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Raw materials B 28,470 24,901
Work in progress FRE 31,806 24,406
Finished goods Rk im 300,066 246,652
360,342 295,959
21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. EREZER

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for wholesalers, where payment in advance

is normally required. The credit period is generally for a

period of one month, extending up to three months for major
customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables from the sales department to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at the
balance sheet date, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

ZISEII;ILM:THHRKEE%)E #EITE
ME-REEFMBERELNR - EE
,HH BE—EA - TERPZEEHAIN
EE={EA - NEBEZHERBIERBZ
FEY IR - LUBEEERER o BEAERRS
SARE R EE R o R EXAT R AR
SEZEKESERSNZ T2 KPR
ﬂg}f/\%l%iy BUEEEBERTZ
B o B E SRFAL AR -

AEBREEH 2 ENE SRFRIBERSR
HEZBREEDITIAT -

Group

REE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Within 90 days 90H N 40,376 31,023
91 to 180 days 912180H 1,330 892
181 to 360 days 1812360H 174 649
Over 360 days 360H LA 164 1,026
42,044 33,590
Less: Impairment allowance & OB E R (341) (1,678)

41,703 31,912
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21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate to
their fair values.

At 31 December 2008, trade receivables of HK$341,000
(2007: HK$1,678,000) were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired trade receivables relate to
customers that were in financial difficulties and only a portion
of the receivables is expected to be recovered. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances. Movements in provision for impairment
of trade receivables are as follows:

21.

PEWs & 5 BRI (48)
RN B B REERE A HERSE -

RZZZENFE+ZHA=+—0 ' ~5E
1 5l 2 7 F& T AR (B ) FE W 5 R K
841,000 (ZF T+ : 1,678,000/8
7o) ° fERIEE < 4 E 5 BRI E IR
MR EFPAR AR ATKE AN
FEYRAR - REBEW B R FHERTFAE
AEIFRREMERNREE - BKES
RN ZBERBESMT

Group
REE
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January mn—H—H 1,678 1,994
Amount write-off as uncollectible 485K R [B] FR TE (607) -
Impairment losses VERIEY SEi=te e
write-back (note 9) (H1:#9) (730) (316)
At 31 December Rt+—A=1+—8H 341 1,678

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

RIERARARE 2 B E 5 BRFERER D1 a0
I

Group
REE
2008 2007
—EENE T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Neither past due nor impaired R EA TR AR BB 40,376 31,023
1 to 3 months past due EwE1E A =3E A 1,327 889
41,703 31,912

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

KRBT RBE 2 BB E S RH T EAE
MH R RS2 Z R TP AR

125



126

Embry Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
AR R ()

31 December 2008 —ZZF)\&+_-HA=+—H

21.

22.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22,

PEW & 5 BRR (48)
EEHERREZE S RUIRHR T E S H
EAEBRRFRIFEECHZBIEFA
7 o RIBAERSR  ARNEEERLES
REAEE) BABEHRIDER S E2H
WEl - RRRIEERRBARZFERIE
HBERRE - ARBEYERZEFEHTE
EAHER s BRI A E & hN5asE b o

BARE - RERAEBEKRFR

Group Company
rEE RATF
2008 2007 2008 2007
—BENF ZETLF —EBEN\F ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr FET FET
Prepaid land lease FEN LS
payments (note 19) FIE(HE19) 82 38 - -
Deposit paid for land i E R
use rights bioe - 14,078 = =
Deposits for acquisition of UREBYZE -
items of property, BE MR EEE
plant and equipment [SENE e 455 1,988 - -
Prepayments BB 4,303 2,680 148 150
Deposits and other e REM
receivables FEW TR IE 20,350 17,152 - 2,529
25,190 35,936 148 2,679
Current portion included ETATERFIA -
in prepayments, Ee R E MR
deposits and other FIE 7 BNERER 15
receivables (24,735) (33,948) (148) (2,679)
Non-current portion JERNERZR (D 455 1,988 - -

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.

bt B E R R ORI E o
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23.

24.

DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY

Particulars of an amount due from a related company,
disclosed pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

23. EW—EREARRE

IRIEEH R BHEDISE161BETHREE 2 Bl —

MREQRFIAFIEHT

Group
rEE
Maximum
amount
31 December outstanding 1 January
2008 during the year 2008
REBENF FAREE RZTET)\F
+=HA=+—H Re® —A—H
Name HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Sinowide Investment Limited (“Sinowide”) - 22,400 22,400

The balance represented the promissory note issued

by Sinowide for the settlement of the balance of the
consideration, as detailed in note 13(b) to the financial
statements. The promissory note was unsecured, bore
interest at 5% per annum, and was fully settled in March
2008.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT  24.

4EERIESIinowide®E 2 T =R - LA (S
REZHE  BEFBEHRVIEHREME
13(b) ° H A RIEAEEM - LLFFIE%
e BERZZENF= AEHER -

BBRBHERUQNFEIRZEMEE

OR LOSS
Group
REE
2008 2007
—EENE —TTF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Quoted investment in ERBEZEE
PRC, at fair value BATERE 23,014 =

The above investment at 31 December 2008 was classified
as held for trading upon inital recognition, designated by the
Group as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

N-TT

— ==

NE+ZA=+—HLlKRERE

VARG HRRFHEREE - AEEETE
HRZRABRRUATEIIRZRME

EE o
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25.  INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 25. RHBARZER
Company
PN

2008 2007

—EEN\F —ETLLF

HK$’000 HK$000

FET FET

Unlisted investments, at cost FELETIRE LA 381,448 381,448
Due from subsidiaries FEUHT B A Rl kIR 327,609 260,281
Due to a subsidiary JEN B A RIFIAE (325) (428)
708,732 641,301

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free B AREHRAEER 2B RFEHHA
and not expected to be settled within the next twelve months REZE AR RRI2EARER - [HBA

from the balance sheet date. The carrying amounts of the At REEREE A TERS -

balances with subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.
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25. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

25. RMBLRZERE)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: MIBARIREEBIT ¢
Issued
Place of and fully Percentage
incorporation/ paid share/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations capital the Company activities
BRTR NG|
FMAL/ MK HERG/ Bl
A% e g Bat TEEHR
2008 2007
“EENE “TTLF
Embry (Changzhou) PRC/ RMB11,600,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading
Garments Ltd. (‘Embry CZ’)* Mainland A K#11,600,0007% of ladies’ brassieres,
(ZFE(EM) China panties, swimwear and
RRAERAR) HE/ sleepwear
(T=FAEEM]) B AR HERER
TIEHE - 748
KA R
Embry (China) PRC/ HK$11,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading
Garments Ltd.* Mainland 11,000,000/ ¢ of ladies’ brassieres,
(‘Embry SZ°) China panties, swimwear and
ZHF () mE/ slespwear
REERAR" B AR HERER
(TRFA I TIEHE - 748
KRR
Embry (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 Trading of ladies’
(“Embry HK”) B HK$45,000 brassieres, panties,
T (BB)BR AT * Non-voting swimwear and
(IRFAER]) deferred sleepwear
HK$4,500,000 BELIHE -
el A KK
45,00087C REEK
HERER

4,500,000 7C
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25. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

25, RHBLRZERE)
MEBARMEENT (@)

Issued
Place of and fully Percentage
incorporation/ paid share/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations capital the Company activities
BRTR AR
TRRL/ FRE BERR/ it
£ - &R Bl E £
2008 2007
“EENE ZETtE
Embry (Macau) Fashion Macau MOP100,000 100 100 Trading of ladies’
Company Limited B 100,000}k brassieres, panties,
(Embry (Macau) swimwear and
Pronto A Vestir, Limitada) Sleepwear
BELIHIE - 74
KR R
Embry (Shandong) Garments PRC/ US$10,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and
Limited (“Embry SD”)™* Mainland 10,000,000% 7T trading of ladies’
ZHF (LR REBR A China brassieres, panties,
(TRFFIWE]) e/ swimwear and
B AR slegpwear
HEREETNE
e KRR
Embry Garments Limited BVI US$1 100 100 Investment holding
EBRUES E REER
Embry Group Limited (‘EGL”) BVI US$472 100 100 Investment holding
EBRUES 472%ETT REER
Gallin Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
HEREBRAR 0 28T REAER
Prime Force Hong Kong HK$20 100 100 Property investment
Advertising Limited B 2057 NERE
Whistleblower Limited BVI US$1 100 100 Holding of trademarks
EBRUES E AR
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25, INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 25. B’\\FﬁE'D\ Rz fER (&)
The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to 1R E R Eﬁxlﬂﬁﬁ&% FIHER g
dividends (other than for any financial year during which B (RLFF B A R 8 A48 71 5
the net profit of Embry HK available for dividend exceeds 1,000,000,000,000,% 7T K 1E 1a] 81 1B G5
HK$1,000,000,000,000), no rights to vote at general meetings BB RIRFEA & FIRZ R RERE
and no rights to receive any surplus in return of capital in a F# 7 B B 500,000,000,000,000,% 7T 3R
winding-up in respect of the first HK$500,000,000,000,000. [E] BRI E R »
o* Embry CZ, Embry SZ and Embry SD are registered as wholly- e THIFEN ~ ZFHE R R ZFF 1L
foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law. I IRIE R B Bt B2 9N 1R -
Except for EGL, all of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held MREGLSN © PR B A RIHH AR R
by the Company. MEREE -
26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26. HRERELZEY
Group Company
AEH PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENFE —TTLF  —BE\E  TELH
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Cash and bank balances RE NIRITH 217,585 145,281 53,276 1,286
Time deposits with original B AR R 2| HH =
maturity of less than B=EARNZ
three months when EHFER
acquired 107,551 103,966 - 51,469
Time deposits with original R EE AR RZEAR
maturity of more than ABB={EAZ
three months when EHFER
acquired 11,364 100,000 - 50,000

336,500 349,247 53,276 102,755
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26.

27.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 26.

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”) amounted

to HK$164,911,000 (2007: HK$90,360,000). The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made

for approximately one week on average depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest
at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 27.

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables as
at the balance sheet date, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

ReERBESEENE)

REEREEBUARE ([ ARE )FHE
2B MIRITHERRA164,911,00008 (=
TT 4 : 90,360,000/87T) ° ARKR
T EBRERARME  EREBEHEX
B 2 SNEE GG - LARKEIE - EIE R
EERRT  NEEEESBEREET
INER XS ZIRITBARE K AHEM

'(Ebzg’ﬁé(] &

RITFFRBEST ARITFRNEREE 2F
BN S o EESF R A —
Ef  SFAKEERZRSFRME
Wiz B2 52 B E B AR KRG B - 8R1T
R KO B S IR AT B 08 40 AT 8
ZASBRIFIRTT

ENEZERRENREE
AEBREER ZENESRAMENE
BIRIBEHZEHZREOMAT

Group

rEE
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within 90 days 90HMA 27,517 28,403
91 to 180 days 91£E180H 1,938 2,601
181 to 360 days 181Z2360H 764 746
Over 360 days 360H A L 2,802 1,092
33,021 32,842

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 30 to 90 days terms.

ENEZRFL TR - —RNB0EIH
MAES °
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28.

29.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. HENFEREGTRIE
Group Company
REH PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —EELF —EENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Other payables Hth eI /I8 24,898 29,530 - 125
Accruals FESHZIE 40,039 23,122 3,180 637
64,937 52,652 3,180 762

Other payables and accruals included amounts of
HK$3,715,000 due to related companies as at 31 December
2008 (2007: Nil). The balances were unsecured, interest-free
and repayable in accordance with normal trading terms.

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
term of three months.

DEFERRED LIABILITIES 29,

Deferred liabilities represent the estimated provision in respect
of long service payments which may become payable in

the future under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance to
employees in proportion to their periods of services with the
Group up to the balance sheet date.

R-BENE+=-A=+—HHMERNK
18 K FEET FIB B IR E T BEE A B 2 3 E
3,715,000 L (ZFTLF : F) - %%
EHBEER  2EREE—MEBKR

fB3E -

Hip BN IR/ R - —RERBRH=
EVI

EESE
EERBEREERAEABREIRE2
ZIEET R - RERFEIEARIBEEE
REKRIZEENASBEZFEMAES
XA e

Group
rEE
2008 2007
—BENE  —TT4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January n—A—H 3,388 3,395
Provision for the year (note 9) FEZBEBHF9) 1,521 192
Payments during the year FE 2R (71) (199)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 4,838 3,388
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30.

DEFERRED TAX 30. EERIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and asset during the FRNREEHRIBEELREESSHWOT -
year are as follows:
Group REH
Withholding
Depreciation taxes on
allowance in undistributed
excess of Unrealised profits on
Revaluation of related profit of PRC
aproperty depreciation inventories  subsidiaries Total
TERZE I A )
ikagil AER  RPWEFZ
MEERE e BEEF bl @5t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FET FAT
At 1 January 2007 RZZZ+F—HA—H 997 853 - - 1,850
Deferred tax charged to the FRERZRIGZ
income statement during EIERA(N12)
the year (note 12) 578 104 - - 682
At 31 December 2007 and 2T
1 January 2008 ﬂpﬂ_ﬂ- BR
—ZE\F—A—-H 1,575 957 - - 2,532
Effect on opening deferred tax % & T 4 EiTE AEREIE
of decrease in rate (note 12) 2B (HiE12) (90) (55) - - (145)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) EREWERNG
to the income statement (%) ZEER R
during the year (note 12) (Bit12) (165) 100 (3,361) 4,200 774
At 31 December 2008 WZZENE
+-A=1+—H 1,320 1,002 (3,361) 4,200 3,161
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the LATF%KE BB SRR 5 2 BERIE
Group for financial reporting purposes: EER DT
HK$000
FET
Deferred tax asset recognised in the RireBEEBRRERZIELTIA
consolidated balance sheet EiE (3,361)
Deferred tax liabilities recognised RiraEEBBRER ZELER A
in the consolidated balance sheet aE 6,522

3,161
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30. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 30. EEBIEE)
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of N &£ RNEBELE ZHEEREY
approximately HK$10,567,000 (2007: HK$1,135,000) that 10,567,00058 75 ( = BE 4 : 1,135,000
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable BIT) Al ERABEEEELEBE AR ZR
profits of the company in which the losses arose. Deferred tax RERF A - ARNZEERIKEEEF
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as EEE—BEE B AR BWR AN s
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making TehERBRENHERARIBEEE - K
for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable Wi Z SRR REERBEE
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% BIERBEDERERE - RBBKS 290
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign EERIINEIEEETIRZIRE BN
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established 10% 2 TEHF - BEARER =TT /\F—
in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 A—BREY  BEBR-_ET+F+=
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower A=1+—H®%2Z2Z7% - it EEINEIZE
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty ERMB R AR ARIGEY - Al:EA Z
between China and jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For FEF T R A REEK - AAEE M S -
the Group, the applicable rates are 5 % and 10%. The Group R R 55%Kk10% ° EI - RE I,,\Eyt
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed HRBRBRKZZHB ARG —EENF—
by those subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of A—BRELZ BRI IS MBI
earnings generated from 1 January 2008. i o
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the ZR N &) ) H AR ERTR 15 IR A B A {r] BT
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. BERGER -
31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. KX
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Authorised: JETE
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000/% &= i%
HK$0.01 each EEO0.01 7oA & AR 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER :
401,130,500 (2007: 400,314,500) 401,130,500/ (= ZZ 4 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 400,314,5000% ) AR E{E

0.0178 TR E iR 4,011

4,003
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31.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 31.  RA&#E)
A summary of the transactions during the year with reference FEREFRAATDETIRASEEEE 2
to the above movements in the Company’s issued share RXHBEWT :
capital is as follows:
Number of Nominal
ordinary value of
shares of ordinary
HK$0.01 each share
SR E{E0.01
BITHEEREE EEREE
Notes HK$’000
Hiat FET
Authorised: ETE :
As at 31 December 2007 and RZZTLF
31 December 2008 +ZA=+—8BK
2T N\F
+—A=+—8H 1,000,000,000 10,000
Issued: 2817 :
As at 1 January 2007 RZZETLF
—H—H 400,000,000 4,000
Share options exercised BT IRE @ 314,500 3
As at 31 December 2007 RZZETLF
+=—A=+—8H 400,314,500 4,003
Share option exercised BT IRE (b) 816,000 8
As at 31 December 2008 RZZEZENEFE
+=-—A=+—H 401,130,500 4,011
Notes: BiEE
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2007, the subscription (@) BE_ZTT+E&E+_A=1+—HILE
rights attaching to 314,500 share options were exercised at B BRABESRRG1.81BTITE
the subscription price of HK$1.81 per share (note 32), at a 314,500 15 B B HE 2 B BT =R B 4 (Bf 3%
consideration of approximately HK$569,000, of which $3,000 32) - KRB 4)569,000/8 7T © HH3,000
was credited to share capital and the balance of HK$566,000 B ITABR AR AR - 11566,00078 It 2 A&
was credited to the share premium account. An amount of BT AR REER - EEIREEITE
HK$1,404,000 has been transferred from the share option B 1,404,00078 7T B B8 IS e e 8 B %
reserve to the share premium account when the options were IR EER o
exercised.
(o) During the year ended 31 December 2008, the subscription (b) BE_ZTZN\E+_A=+—HILE

rights attaching to 816,000 share options were exercised

at the subscription price of HK$1.81 per share (note 32), at
a consideration of approximately HK$1,477,000 of which
HK$8,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of
HK$1,469,000 was credited to the share premium account.
An amount of HK$868,000 has been transferred from the
share option reserve to the share premium account when the
options were exercised.

B RRBBESRRG1.81BTITE
816,000 7 B8 A% #& 2 F7 BT 52 B8 48 (B
5£32) » RIEH1,477,000/87C » Heh
8,000/ L5 BR AR AN + M 1,469,000/%5
TOZ EERRBIB AR R ERR o EIEARIE
JETT{EEF - 868,000/ 7T A fE A A 1 1
ERERMEER -
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32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted a pre-initial public offering

share option scheme on 25 November 2006 (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) and a share option scheme on 18
December 2006 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Eligible participants of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
include (i) any employee (whether full time or part time,
including directors) of the Company, its subsidiaries or
invested entity; (i) any directors or proposed directors
(including independent non-executive directors) of the
Company, its subsidiaries or invested entity; (i) any advisor
(professional or otherwise), consultant, individual or entity
who is in the opinion of the directors of the Company has
contributed or will contribute to the growth and development
of the Group and the listing of the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange; and (iv) any company wholly-owned
by one or more eligible participants as referred to in (i) to (iii)
above.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Pre-IPO

Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Options”) may be
accepted not later than the earlier of 21 days from the date

of offer or 28 November 2006, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the Pre-IPO Share Options is determinable by the
directors, which period may commence from the date of the
offer of the Pre-IPO Share Options, and ends on a date which
is not later than ten years from the date of the offer of the Pre-
IPO Share Options or the expiry date of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the Pre-IPO Share Options is
determinable by the directors, but shall not be less than the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

There is no individual limit under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme. No further option can be granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme.

32.
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ARBR_FERFT—A-THBER®A
BRARBERBRETE ([ 5RAFE
ENBREE DR -_ETRF+ A
T\ BB Bl ([RERAERT S )
REAKEORIELERMNEERS A
ERHSRE R EE -

BRARBEABRETE
BRARABEAERETSINGERSHE
HRE)ARQR - HEAKH B A RS
BRAMEMNEEIEBES  (HAQ
Al ~ EEMMBARSKAHEE R RIMIRE
EFSNREES(BEBIIFNTES)
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

32.

Pre-IPO Share Options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Set out below are the outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options as

at 31 December 2008:

Name or
category of participant

pRALE
£

Executive directors
HiEs
Mr. Cheng Man Tai

Ly v

Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza

BRRT

Madam Ngok Ming Chu

il

Mr. Hung Hin Kit

AEbRE

Number of share options

BREYR

Cancelled
At Granted  orlapsed  Exercised At31
1 January during during during  December
2008 the year the year the year 2008
HN-BEN\F ERis HN-BENF
-f-B  EARE X% EMEHR T=A=T-B
873,000 - - (218000) 655,000
500,000 - - (125000) 375,000
773,000 - - (193,000) 580,000
332,000 - - (83,000) 249,000

BREEE)

BRNRABRERBRETSE(2)
BRAMBEENBREL T THRA AR

B BN RAE IR EAIER) -

ATHIR —ZETZN\FE+_HA=1—HH
RITIE B IR AP 3 & A B AR

Date of grant of
share options

ERR
RitRS

25 November 2006

ZERET-AZTEA

25 November 2006

ZERET-AZTEA

25 November 2006

ZERET-AZTEA

25 November 2006

ZERET-AZTEA

Exercise period of
share options*

FER
fries

18 December 2007 to

17 December 2011
ZERHETAT\RE
“EF-F2ATLR

18 December 2007 to

17 December 2011
ZERHETAT\RE
“F-F2ATLR

18 December 2007 to

17 December 2011
ZERHETAT\RE
“E—HT2ATHA

18 December 2007 to

17 December 2011
ZERHETAT\RE
“E—HT2ATHA

Exercise
price of
share
optionst
HKS
per share
EhE
fifefe
GHET
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32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 32.
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
Set out below are the outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options as
at 31 December 2008: (continued)
Number of share options
BREYR
Cancelled
At Granted  orlapsed  Exercised At31

Name or 1 January during during during  December
category of participant 2008 the year the year the year 2008
SHENE HN-BEN\F ERis HN-BENF
ZEH -f-B  EARE X% EREHR T=A=T-B
Independent non-executive directors
BuEs
Mr. Lau Siu Ki 68,000 - - - 68,000
HERE
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 68,000 - - - 68,000
21
Prof. LeeT. S. 68,000 - - - 68,000
EREHR
Other employees
itk
In agoregate 3,071,500 - (1,078500)  (197,000) 1,796,000
a3t

5,763,500 - (1,078500)  (816,000)  3:869,000

BREEE)

BRAMBENERESE(E)
ATHIR —ZETZN\FE+_HA=1T—HH

ATEBRRFHEERELAE : (@)

Date of grant of
share options

ERR
RitRS

25 November 2006

225 ET-AZTEA

25 November 2006

ZERET-AZTEA

25 November 2006

ZERET-AZTEA

25 November 2006

Z2RET-AZTEA

Exercise period of
share options*

FER
fries

18 December 2007 to

17 December 2011
ZERHETAT\RE
“E—HT2ATHA

18 December 2007 to

17 December 2011
ZERHETAT\RE
ZE—ET2ATHA

18 December 2007 to

17 December 2011
ZERHETAT\RE
“E—HT2ATHA

18 December 2007 to

17 December 2011
ZERHETCAT\RE
“E—HT2ATHA

Exercise
price of
share
optionst
HKS
per share
EhE
fifefe
GHET
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32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes to the reconciliation the Pre-IPO Share Options
outstanding during the year:

*

The Pre-IPO Share Options are vested to the grantees in the
following manner:

- 25% of such options were vested on 18 December 2007 with
an exercise period from 18 December 2007 to 17 December
2011;

= 25% of such options were vested on 18 December 2008 with
an exercise period from 18 December 2008 to 17 December
2011;

- 25% of such options will be vested on 18 December 2009
with an exercise period from 18 December 2009 to 17
December 2011; and

= the remaining 25% of such options will be vested on 18
December 2010 with an exercise period from 18 December
2010 to 17 December 2011.

# The exercise price of each of the Pre-IPO Share Options per
share is 50% of the final offer price of HK$3.62 and is subject
to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The fair value of the Pre-IPO Share Options granted

during the year ended 31 December 2006 was estimated

at approximately HK$13,525,000 (HK$2.08 each) of

which the Company recognised share option expenses of
HK$2,636,000, HK$6,225,000 and HK$584,000 for the years
ended 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

At as 31 December 2008, the equity-settled option expenses
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of HK$4,080,000
had not been recognised in the income statement.

32.
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32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 32.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The fair value of the Pre-IPO Share Options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2006 was estimated as at the
date of grant, using a binomial model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) 0
Expected volatility (%) 49
Risk-free interest rate (%) 3.8
Suboptimal exercise factor (times) 3

The suboptimal exercise factor is based on the directors’
estimation and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

BREEE)
BRNRABRERBRETSE(2)
HEZTTZRET-_A=T—HILFER
hZ BRAFEERBREN R FETIE
A—EAEARNER L B HETH - X2
At R SRR RO RES - T
RN EAZE AT AIRR

BB (%) 0
TEHARIE(%) 49

RUBR T2 (%) 3.8
RFITEBRERE () 3

RETEBRERRABRBESRMHAE
E - WA —EREHE R AR BRI TT(E AR
2 - RENR IR R R RIE LR IE R B AR
BEOERER A ERERGERT
o

S A B A (AR A
HAE -
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32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share Option Scheme

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include,

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time, including
directors but excluding any non-executive director) of the
Company, its subsidiaries or invested entity; (i) any non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, its subsidiaries or invested entity; (iii)
any supplier or customer of the Group or any invested entity;
(iv) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any invested
entity; (v) any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any invested entity or any holder of any securities issued

by any member of the Group or any invested entity; (vi) any
advisor (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area
of business or business development of the Group or any
invested entity; (vii) any other group or classes of participants
who have contributed or may contribute by way of joint
venture, business alliance or other business arrangement

to the development and growth of the Group; and (viii) any
company wholly-owned by one or more eligible participants
as referred in to (i) to (vii) above. The Share Option Scheme
became effective on 18 December 2006 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for a
period of ten years to 17 December 2016.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme within
any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting. Share options granted to

a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of

the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company.

IBRRAET Bl

B s E
BREFENESERS2HEERENAR
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32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with an

aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s

shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, which period may commence from the date of the
offer of the share options, and ends on a date which is not
later than ten years from the date of the offer of the share
options or the expiry date of the Share Option Scheme, if
earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the
offer of the share options; (i) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends

or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Embry Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

32.

Set out below are the outstanding share options under the
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2008:

Name or
category of participant

pRALE
£

Executive directors
#iEs
Mr. Cheng Man Tai

Ly v

Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza

g2t

Madam Ngok Ming Chu

il

Mr. Hung Hin Kit

AEbRE

Number of share options

RREUR

Cancelled
At Granted  orlapsed  Exercised At31
1 January during during during  December
2008 the year the year the year 2008
HN-BEN\F ERis HN-BENF
-f-B  EARE X% EMEHR T=A=T-B
- 1000000 - - 100000
- 1,00000 - - 100000
- 1,000000 - - 1000000
- 1,000000 - - 1000000

BREEE)

B8 (E)

UTFHBIN — 2%

— ==

Rt 8T M RITRERBAAE

Date of grant of

5

—3%

5

—3%

5

=T%

5 November 2008

—3%

share options

EhR
RitRS

November 2008

Net—ATA

November 2008

NEt—ATH

November 2008

Net—ATA

NEt—ATH

Exercise period of
share options*

FER
fries

5 November 2009 to

4 November 2012
ZEENET-RRRZ
Z3-ZE+-AMA

5 November 2009 to

4 November 2012
“ETH-AEEE
Z5-ZEr-AmA

5 November 2009 to

4 November 2012
“3TFH-ATEE
Z5-ZEr-AmA

5 November 2009 to

4 November 2012
ZENET-RRRZ
Z3-ZE+-AMA

NE+—A=+—HE

Exercise
price of
share
options
HKS
per share
EhE
ikid |
GHET
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32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 32.
Share Option Scheme (continued)

Set out below are the outstanding share options under the

Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2008: (continued)

Number of share options
BREHE
Cancelled

Name or At Granted  orlapsed  Exercised At31
category of participant 1 January during during during  December

2008 the year the year the year 2008
SHENE HN-BEN\F ERis HN-BEN\F
355 -f-B  EARE XN EREAR T=A=T-B
Independent non-executive directors
BuEs
Mr. Lau Siu Ki - 700,000 - - 700,000
B
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung - 700,000 - - 700,000
21
Prof. LeeT. S. - 700,000 - - 700,000
EREHR
Other employees
itk
In aggregate - 6,600,000 - - 6,600,000
a3t

- 12700000 - - 12700000

BB RESH ()
B ECH 8 (E)

ATEHINR -—ZEZN\F+-_HA=+—BF

PRt 8T M RITRERERE - (@)

Date of grant of Exercise period of
share options share options*
BhE e
RHAH e

5 Noverber 2008 5 November 2009 to

4 November 2012

“ZI\E1-RER  ZEENET-ARAR
“E-%1-AmA

5 November 2008 5 November 2009 to

4 November 2012

“ZI\E1-RER  ZEENET-RRAE
“E-E1-AmA

5 November 2008 5 November 2009 to

4 November 2012

“ZI\Et-RER  ZEENET-RRAE
Z5-—fr-AmA

5 November 2008 5 November 2009 to

4 November 2012

“2F\Et-ARR  ZEENET-ARRZ
Z5-—fr-AmA

Exercise
price of
share
options
HKS
per share
EhE
fifefE
GHET
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32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes to the reconciliation of share options under the Share
Option Scheme outstanding during the year:

*

The share options are vested to the grantees in the following

manner:

= 30% of such options will be vested on 5 November
2009 with an exercise period from 5 November 2009
to 4 November 2012;

- 30% of such options will be vested on 5 November
2010 with an exercise period from 5 November 2010
to 4 November 2012; and

= the remaining 40% of such options will be vested on
5 November 2011 with an exercise period from 5
November 2011 to 4 November 2012.

The fair value of the share options under the Share Option
Scheme granted during the year ended 31 December 2008
was estimated at approximately HK$6,664,000 (HK$0.52
each) of which the Company recognised a share option
expense of HK$593,000 during the year ended 31 December
2008.

As at 31 December 2008, the equity-settled option expenses
of HK$6,071,000 and under the Share Option Scheme had
not been recognised in the income statement.

32.
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32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 32.

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The fair value of the share options under the Share Option
Scheme granted during the year ended 31 December 2008
was estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to
the model used:

Dividend yield (%) 3
Expected volatility (%) 55
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.8
Expected life of option (year) 4
Exit rate — director (%) 0
Exit rate — staff except director (%) 15
Weighted average share price (HK$) 1.45

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also
not necessarily be the actual outcome. The exit rate is based
on the historical data on staff/director turnover rates.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

BREEE)

B ECH 8 (E)
HE-ZTTZN\F+-_A=+T—HILFER
ERERER B L 2 BN A HE T E
A-EAEARNER L B HETH - X2
At R SRR RO R RES - T
RN EAZEAFTAIRR

% B2 (%) 3
TE AR 18 (%) 55
472 [ B 7 25 (%) 1.8
IR RETE AR F HA (4F) 4
BHE B (%) 0
BRNE-BRESINYE (%) 15
IREFHEAREGET) 1.45
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 32.
The following share options were outstanding under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share Option Scheme
during the year:

BREEE)
AT BRERNERAFEERBRET S
KBRS RERTEITA T W RITRE AR A

2008 2007
—BENE —TTF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
HK$ HK$
per share per share
nAEF InFEF13
TEE BREHA 17128 ERES R
ZiRET BT
At 1 January K—A—H 1.81 5,753,500 1.81 6,510,000
Granted during the year FRRE 1.45 12,700,000 1.81 -
Exercised during the year FRTTE 1.81 (816,000) 1.81 (314,500)
Cancelled or lapsed N SRR AL
during the year 1.81 (1,078,500) 1.81 (442,000)
At 31 December Bnt+=—A=1+—H 1.53 16,559,000 1.81 5,753,500

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was HK$4.65 per
share.

The 816,000 share options exercised during the year resulted
in the issue of 816,000 ordinary shares of the Company and
new share capital of HK$8,000 and share premium account
of HK$1,469,000 (before issue expenses), as further detailed
in notes 31 and 33(b) to the financial statements.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 16,559,000
share options outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and the Share Option Scheme. The exercise in

full of the share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 16,559,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of HK$166,000 and share premium account of
HK$25,234,000 (before issue expenses).

Subsequent to the balance sheet date and at the date of
approval of these financial statements, the Company had
16,559,000 share options outstanding under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme and Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 4.12% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at that date.

FRNE/TEMBRENITEE BINEFE
YRR (B B BR%4.6578 7T °

RERTTE 2 816,00017 B AE S A A )
2%17816,000/% L @A + EA48,000/8 T2
A% AN & 1,469,000/ 7T 2 A% 17 )5 8 Bk (30
BREEITRISAT) - BRIFIBERNT B HRE
Bfi7E31 %33(b) °

REER - NARE%HE 16,559,000 B X
DHBERBRE 2 RERETEI T Z
M AT TEBERRAE o ARIZAA RIREF AR A
20 IREERERTE  2EITEZER
P8 5 B UK A R BASNEE 1T 16,559,000 %
38 A% A Ko E A A IINAR 2K 166,000 78 7T K.
& 17 3% (8 BR 25,234,000 7T (1 21750
AT e

HEHABEMUERSETEREER © K
N A1 A 16,559,000 17 B X A 5 3 & A
MEARAE T B R BB IR T8I N 2 MR TT(ERE
B - AR RRZBHE BITRALY
4.12% °
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33.

RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents

(i) the difference between the nominal value of the
shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
reorganisation of certain members of the Group which
took place on 31 December 1992, over the nominal
value of EGL’s shares issued in exchange therefor;

(i) the premium arising from the share issues by EGL
for settlement of the amount due to the ultimate
holding company of HK$15,841,000; (iii) the premium
arising from the acquisition of Embry HK from the
minority shareholders of HK$5,000,000; and (iv)

the excess of the nominal value of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor
and the then existing 10,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each credited as fully paid at par.

In accordance with the relevant regulations applicable
in the PRC, subsidiaries of the Company established
in the PRC are required to transfer a certain
percentage of their profits after tax, if any, to the
enterprise expansion and statutory reserve funds,
which are non-distributable, before profit distributions
to shareholders. The amounts of the transfers are
subject to the approval of the board of directors of
these subsidiaries.

The Group applied the transitional provision of HKFRS
3 which permits goodwill in respect of acquisitions
which occurred prior to 1 January 2001, to remain
eliminated against the consolidated reserves. The
amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated
reserves, arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries
prior to 1 January 2001, was stated at cost, which is
amounted to HK$3,168,000 as at 31 December 2008
(2007: HK$3,168,000).

33.

&
(a)

ES |
R RIBAEEADFRHESEN
RASBHERHBHENGA RS
BE% -

REBEHBARIENREBEEAHR
—hh=—&E+-A=+—B%KE
AEBETFTHERR @ ZEKE
ARIBHEOEEBREREESR
HAPTEEITEGLAR D M EZERE ¢ (i)
EGLEEE R S RKRIE/R A B FRIE
15,841,000 7 7t M # 17 21T 0
EERDGEE 5 (i) D BARRIE
22 F75 B 7S T EE A 5 {8 5,000,000
BIT 0 R (iv) iR HR & B E AR U T
BARNBANEEBLAARE
R T UMEAR MR A EER
B A M iR B ABRPIEB R 1
10,000,0008% & A E{E0.01/8 LAY
EREBRD

R EBIERNEREARS - KRR
R BRSO A R A A T
B2 L HIBRBRIRE M (A ) FE R AR
RIEHEN 2 RAT SR E X ERK
FAERBEEE(BRTAINIK) °
HENSBAGZEHNBARNE
EEHAETAEE

AEE ARSI ERELERE
SEREVBEMIES AT =TT —
F— A —BRIETREBATELNRE
BHFRESFEENLEE - REBR
GAERBEAR —_ZT—F—F—H
AIEEHI B A R EANE B SR
BAGE R_ZETENE+_A
=+—H 43,168,000/ T(— ==
+4F : 3,168,000/ 7T)
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33.

(b)

RESERVES (continued) 33. f#E#E)
Company NG|
Retained
profits/
Share Share (accu-
premium Contributed option  mulated
account surplus reserve loss) Total
RERH/
ROGER BRARH BRERE (Riss) @5t
Notes HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
[ FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2007 RZZEZtF—F—H 327270 381,248 584 (24,077) 685,025
Profit for the year FERA - - - 58,154 58,154
Total income and FRBRARRZ
expense for the year = — = 58,154 58,154
Issue of shares BIRM 31(a) 1,970 - (1,404) - 566
Equity-settled share DRI
option arrangements FEREL 32 - - 6,225 - 6,225
Share options lapsed RERERY = = (36) 36 -
Interim 2007 dvidend =~ EEARERE 15 = = = (8000)  (8,000)
Proposed final 2007 RE-ZTTLF
dividend KRS 15 = = - (24000)  (24,000)
At 31 December 2007 RZEZT+F
and 1 January 2008 +-A=1—H
k=TZ\F—H—H 329,240 381,248 5,369 2,113 717,970
Profit for the year FRERF - - - 40,320 40,320
Total income and FRARARFAY
expense for the year - - - 40,320 40,320
Issue of shares Eali) 31(b) 2,337 - (868) - 1,469
Equity-settled share MRS 2
option arrangements TR L 32 - - 3,229 - 3,229
Share options lapsed BlRER - - (1,034) 1,034 -
Interim 2008 dividend ZZEN\FHRHRE 15 = = - (8023) (8023
Proposed 2008 final BE-ZT\F
and special dividends RERE RAERIRE 15 - - - (24,068)  (24,068)
At 31 December 2008 R-ZZN\F
“A=1-*H 331,577 381,248 6,696 11,376 730,897
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33.

34.

RESERVES (continued)

(b)

Company (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the excess of the then net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company pursuant to the group
reorganisation, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor
and the then existing 10,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each credited as fully paid at par.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be

transferred to retained profits should the related options expire

or be forfeited.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

(a)

Major non-cash transactions

Pursuant to the agreement (the “Acquisition
Agreement”) entered into between a subsidiary and
the People’s Government of Zhangajiu, Shandong
Province, the PRC (the “Zhangaiu Government”)
on 28 December 2005, the Group had agreed to
acquire a 50 years’ land use right of a piece of land
located in Shandong Province at a consideration of
RMB22,262,000.

33. fREAE)
(b) ARARGE)
RARNEHBRTI AR RIRIEES
B EAWEENB A RN E R EEF
BB AR AR BT R
IR ANEE LA RAREEABRT IVES R
£910,000,000/% AR EI{E0.01 4 7T
HMERREERND

B REBIE IR LB HARITER BB AE
MAFE - RPBHERME2.450 AR
REMXZNGABRRP AL - £
KR A BB EE T ERBRERMEE
& o SR A R AR o SR AR08 W By 5 33

EREEN -

3

34. HREBRERERME

&

(a) FTEFBEERS
BE—EME AR EPELREE
EMARBR (EETEMF])
R-_ZEZRF+ A=+ N\HA]
v wE ([WERE]) @ A%
EREKRELRAAN B2
S0 THE AR - RERARE
22,262,0007T °

1567
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34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (continued)

(a)

Major non-cash transactions (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the land
lease payments of RMB16,697,000 were made

by the Group and the Group received a subsidy of
RMB16,631,000 from the Zhanggiu Government for
the construction cost of the basic infrastructure to be

incurred by the Group in Shandong Province, the PRC.

On 28 October 20086, the deposit of RMB3,525,000
had been utilised for the grant of a land use right of a
piece of land with an area of 167,870 square metres
and its related certificate had been obtained from the
government land bureau of Shandong Province, the
PRC. Based on the Acquisition Agreement, the Group
may request the People’s Government of Zhangqiu

to refund the unutilised deposits of RMB13,172,000 if
no further land use right certificate was granted to the
Group by 31 December 2008.

As at 31 December 2008, no further land use right
certificate was granted to the Group. Pursuant

to a supplementary agreement to the Acquisition
Agreement, the Zhanggiu Government agreed

to refund the unutilised deposits to the Group.
Accordingly, the Group utilised the deposits of
RMB13,172,000 (approximately HK$14,985,000)
with the subsidy from Zhangaqiu Government. The
remaining subsidy of RMB3,459,000 (approximately
HK$3,935,000) is deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and released to the income statement by
way of a reduced depreciation charge.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group
disposed of certain subsidiaries for a consideration

of HK$56,000,000. The above consideration was
satisfied in cash and by an issue of the promissory

note, as detailed in note 23 to the financial statements.

The promissory note was classified as “Due from a
related company” on the face of the consolidated
balance sheet.

34.

RERSRERMEE)

(a)

FEFRERZ (&)
REBEE=TTF+=-A=+—8H
IEFEHRE - AEEEXF i
A E 7 A A R ¥ 16,697,000 7T
I #E 2 Fr T BT UER A B A R B
16,631,000 7T 1E 7 2~ &= & #§ 70
B R AR 2 BIER o R
:ff/\¢+ﬂ "f'/\E' E@Jﬁﬁ
%4 AR 3,525,000 AR H —
TREE167,870F F R i 2 -3
{FERE - MBI ERE BT LM
BEREBRFEE - BIEKE DS
WR=FEZEN\F+=-A=+—HH
W — P T AR B T b
B AEEAERERTARBN
BB AREE3,172,0007T 2 A BN A
e e

R-BEN\F+_A=+—H &«
EEAEE— SR T AR
& BEREERENEE RS 2
EMBFRERASERERSH
e  MAKBEEHKERTEFZ
B - B AREE13,172,0007T
(#914,985,000/870) 2 & ° &%
T2 @B A R#3,459,0007T (4
3,935,000/ 7T ) BRIt EE 2 iRE
B IRIE B &R M
R EINRRK o

HE— ?Tt¢+:ﬂz+—5¢
FE AEEHEETHEAR
1B 556,000,000/ 7T ° iutf“"‘
IR & RBETHEAR BRI - 15
BRI BHREME23 - AHEE
\ﬁéﬁﬁéLﬁ¢ > A FEUR
—MEERRFIE] -
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34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT (continued)

(b)

34. REBREREBRMFEE)

Disposal of subsidiaries (b) HEME AR
2007
—ETF
HK$'000
FHET
Disposal of net assets of the subsidiaries:  HEE A T EEF(E
Property, plant and equipment ME - R MR 13,785
Prepaid land lease payments TEfS LA ERIR 2,386
Other receivables H b fE U RIE 9
Cash and bank balances & RIRTTEEH 1,428
Other payables and accruals L Ath S 5RIE SR FE AT 5E (127)
Total net assets disposed of HEEEFERTE 17,476
Exchange fluctuation reserve released A E RS AERR Y P& 3,
on disposal B ED (4,581)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries o E BT A Bl M 41,998
Expenses on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBATMX 1,107
Total consideration of the disposal HEBRE 56,000
Satisfied by: LATRBI A AT
Consideration settled in cash LR e T ARE 33,600
Issue of the promissory note (note 23) BITERHLER (#723)

22,400

56,000

183
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 34. HERERERMZE)
STATEMENT (continued)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued) (b) HEMRBATE)
An analysis of the net cash inflow of cash and cash MEERBARIZIRE RIREEE
equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is MZIBERAFEOWT ¢
as follows:
Group
rEE
2007
ZETLF
HK$'000
FET
Consideration settled in cash LIRS R E 33,600
Cash and bank balances HE 2R MRITER
disposed of (1,428)
Expenses on disposal of HEHBA R
subsidiaries (1,107)
Net inflow of cash and cash RHENBARZIRS
equivalents in respect of the REReEBMRNER
disposal of subsidiaries 31,070
35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 35. REBNZH
(a) As lessor (a) EREBEA

The Group leases its investment property (note 18)
under an operating lease arrangement, with a lease
negotiated for a term of four years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under a non-cancellable
operating lease with its tenant falling due as follows:

REBRBEEENLTHERRE
WME(MEE18) - MAAMEFHE
1THERS e

REEER  REAKEEBSET
M Z NRIBEHR SR - ARER
AT EBz RRREREEES &R

R

Group

REHE
2008 2007
—EBENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Within one year —FE R 1,370 4,009

In the second to fifth years, F_EZFERF

inclusive (BiEEEME) = 1,352

1,370 5,361
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 35.

(b)

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its shops, counters,
warehouses, office properties and office equipment
under operating lease arrangements with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to eight years.

At 31 December 2008, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

REBORHE)
(b) ERAEBEA

REBERBRERNLZHERET
B B BE - MAEWER
MAERME - BOA—EN\FHEF
HETIER -

RZBENFE+-A=+—0 ' &
EERLAT B EIR R Al B e
HMARN 2 R REEESREEN
™

Group

REE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Within one year —FR 57,054 48,586

In the second to fifth years, FE_EERF

inclusive (BIEEREME) 32,661 28,837
After five years AFE 766 =
90,481 77,423

In addition, the Group has entered into agreements
with department stores to enable the Group to set up
its retail outlets therein. The operating lease rentals
for the use of their floor areas in department stores
are based on the higher of a fixed rental or contingent
rent based on sales of the retail outlets pursuant to
the terms and conditions as set out in the respective
agreements. As the future sales of these retail outlets
could not be accurately determined, the relevant
contingent rent has not been included above and only
the minimum lease commitments have been included
in the above table.

S - B EHE AR R
# o AEAEEERERRAMR
TEH - EABEARZEEEE
M e 2 LMK & TIRIREE
HeRfAHEMERT ZRTEE
E o RS TIIRIBE R ETH
ZIEFRRIRHR T ER 2 HERE
E o BRNZETERIAKRBER
NECEMIEE T - GRS AES
WARBIEELER - EREFHTIHKIE
THEASE -
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36.

COMMITMENTS 36. RiE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following NEEE R - NEEZAFAENT :
commitments:
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Contracted for commitments in respect of A I8 B 7 B 5] 4)753E
— the land lease payments in the PRC — 7 + A E A - 5,948
— the acquisition of property, —BEWE  BENERE
plant and equipment 9,545 29,948
9,545 35,896
The Company had no significant commitment at the balance RA TR 4EE B A7 8 5 REE -

sheet date.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. RERSMzEmMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RESEERESRTANERMERNT :

instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

Financial assets SREE
Group
AEE
2008 2007
“EENF e 3
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
fair value fair value
through through
Loans and profit or Loans and profit or
receivables loss Total receivables loss Total
EBBERE BRERR
NAYE KATE
EXR L] Rk Gl
kA SHEE @t FEWRIR TRBE #st

HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FET FET T T THET

Trade receivables JEWE 555k 41,703 - 41,703 81,912 - 31,912
Financial assets included in  §l| A& F0E -
prepayment, deposits we REA R

and other receivables REZEREE 2,202 - 2,202 5,863 - 5,863
Due from a related B —EREAR

company IE - - - 22,400 - 22,400
Financial assets at fair ERBERAATE

value through profit SR e REE

or loss - 23,014 23,014 = = =
Cash and cash equivalents 4 RS ZEY 336,500 - 336,500 349,247 - 349,247

380,495 23,014 403,509 409,422 = 409,422
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 37. RERSWMZEmMIAE)
Financial liabilities TRISE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost A EZ A R
Group
REEE
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Trade and bills payables JERE SRR R IEN R & 33,021 32,842
Financial liabilities included in 1) 75 ELAth & 1~ 08 2
other payables and accrual Bt IEZ eRMEE
(note 28) (B17£28) 24,898 29,530
57,919 62,372
Financial assets ERMEE
Loans and receivables B R IEWIE
Company
ARAT
2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Due from subsidiaries FEUSHT B A B FRIE 327,609 260,281
Cash and cash equivalents B NEEEEY 53,276 102,755
380,885 363,036
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37.

38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

37.

BERSTZEMIAE)
EREE
BEBEHATEZ A E

Company
¥ N/NE|

2008 2007

—EENF —ETF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Due to a subsidiary e — R B A R 5 IE 325 428
Financial liabilities included in other 5l A At FE R Iéi&

payables and accrual (note 28) FEETRIB 2 BB E(H17728) - 125

325 668

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, comprise cash
and short term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such

as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The directors review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s financial instruments are short term in nature.
The carrying amounts of these financial instruments reported
on the balance sheet approximate to their fair values, and
hence there is no interest rate risk exposure in relation to
these instruments.

38.

B ERERE R EREE

AEBZz T2 T ABRER S BEHRT
Ko WMFEMTATZANEAREEL
EXGERE  AKERHMTREREE
REE - WEW§%$ XN E SRR
R DEEBBKEEBES

AEESHT A2 T 2RAMBATERER
SMERRR - FER &w@é@ﬂ%°§
%%@I%EE&Mi%EH@Zﬁ
BRAEREMAT o

R =R
AEBZSRTABRHNEYS - ZFSR
IEFéF%ﬁ%%zﬁZ%E@@E
FEME - R EFSE T A ERN X

G o
AA

/N
2
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group carries on its sales and purchases transactions
mainly in Hong Kong dollars and RMB. As the foreign currency
risks generated from the sales and purchases can be set off
with each other, the foreign currency risk is minimal for the
Group. It is the policy of the Group to continue maintaining
the balance of its sales and purchases in the same currency.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to
protect against the volatility associated with foreign currency
transactions and other financial assets and liabilities created
in the ordinary course of the business. However, as the
Group’s net profit is reported in Hong Kong dollars, there will
be a translation gain as a result of the RMB appreciation, and
vice versa. The majority of the Group’s operating assets are
located in Mainland China and are denominated in RMB.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the balance
sheet date to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit after tax and equity (due to changes in the fair
value of monetary assets and liabilities).

38.

B EREREBEREEE)

SN LB
AEEBTEUBTRARBETEER
Z - ARNEMEEEL ZINERK AT EAE
HiE - MARBEZINERRER - NEE
R BAEBEFARR ERETEE
Ty o AREEWEADTE S F T B KA
BEEBBREIINER S REMESREE
REEMRME RS o AT - BRAKE
ZHEANBTLES - A RBETHER 7K
BER M - RZIA - REBABMHLE
BEHLNHBEARE - WAARKFR -

TRIRIERA £ 07 8 R R e TR
FSRT - ARSI 0R Bt 162 TR BRHEE A
RUER TR A BB 2 HRE (5
REBAER A EORTELH) -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit after
in RMB rate tax and equity
AR BB &R F
EREH RERER M,
(T3R) O 2)
% HK$'000
FET
2008 —BEN\F
If Hong Kong dollar weakens ST AREEE
against RMB 5 16,294
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens B AREHE
against RMB (5) (16,294)
2007 T+ F
If Hong Kong dollar weakens ST AREEE
against RMB 5 12,686
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens BT AREHE
against RMB (5) (12,686)
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and on an individual basis. Each of the
customers has been attached with a trading limit and any
excess to the limit must be approved by the general manager
of the operation unit. Under the tight control of the credit term
and detailed assessment to the creditworthiness of individual
customers, the Group’s exposure to bad debts is maintained
as minimal.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, an amount due from a
related company and other receivables, arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in
note 21 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds to meet
all contractual financial commitments as they fall due. The
Group’s objective is to maintain a prudent financial policy,
to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain
a contingency plan for funding to ensure that the Group
maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirement.

The Group continued to enjoy a strong financial position with
cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$336,500,000 as
at 31 December 2008 (2007: HK$349,247,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group repaid
the interest-bearing bank loans prior to their maturity and no
new loan was drawn in current year.

The Group financed its operations and investment activities
by internally generated cash flows and the proceeds from the
Company’s initial public offering, respectively.

38.

B EREREBEREEE)

FERE
AEBERNAREERINETFPETR
5 o REAKENERER  HAEENREER
FRETRINEFHARBREEZER
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7 BHRBEZBVASIEER L 22
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AEBEMSREENEERRERERS
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Y FIE - RS T RVEENEERR -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
AR R ()

31 December 2008 —ZZF)\&+_-A=+—H

38.

39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38. BEREEERERBEKE)
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBEERRE)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the WEER  AEBERBARMRNRTEZ
balance sheet date, based on the undiscounted payments, SHaEIEAMT
was as follows:
Group INEEH
Less than
On demand one year Total
RER DPR—F 5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
2008 —EENF
Trade and bills payables JE B SRR RIENRE 8,841 24,180 33,021
Other payables H b e FoE - 24,898 24,898
8,841 49,078 57,919
2007 —TT+F
Trade and bills payables N8 2R R BN REE 4,439 28,403 32,842
Other payables H At A58 - 29,530 29,530
4,439 57,933 62,372
Capital management BEXER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will REEEREEERURRAEB G ISES
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the B FARNTEEREABLESL RERS
return to the equity holders through the optimisation of the B ERR R B HRILERZAK - REEZ
debt and equity balance where appropriate. No change was TENFRZTTLF+A=+—HIt
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing FE - ERERZERE  BERIEFITE
capital during the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 . BE) o
As the Group has no debts, its capital is entirely represented BRAAREEN &G - HETARAHIER
by equity attributable to equity holders of the Company, which NElERFBEARGER(BIEEETE
comprises issued capital and reserves as detailed in the KRR  FBENGEEREEE -
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 39. HEMBEX

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 16 April 2009.

MBREAN_ZENFHA+RBEES
SR RIAETIE -
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Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
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